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Purpose UK Holdings Limited

Directors’ report for the year ended 30 June 2016

The directors present their report together with the unaudited financial statements of Purpose
UK Holdings Limited (the “Company”) for the year ended 30 June 2016.

The Company qualifies as a small company in accordance with sections 381 to 383 of the
Companies Act 2006 (the “Act’) and the Directors’ Report has therefore been prepared taking
into consideration the entitiement to small companies exemptions provided in sections 414B (as
incorporated to the Act by the Strategic Report and Directors’ Report Regulations 2013) of the
Act.

Principal activities and review of the business
The Company is dormant and did not trade during the year.

Directors and their interests

The directors who served the company during the period and up to the date of this report were
as follows:

S Cohen (appointed 27 June 2016)
E Erickson (resigned 8 July 2016)

K Kaye

M Prior (resigned 20 June 2016)

The directors have no declarable interest in the shares of the Company or of any other group
company.

On behalf of the Board

K Kaye
Director

oate: 21 comeat 1006

Address of registered office:

Cardinal House, Abbeyfield Court
Abbeyfield Road

Nottingham

United Kingdom

NG7 2SZ

Registered No: 06045943 2



Purpose UK Holdings Limited

Statement of comprehensive income
For the year ended 30 June 2016

2016 2015

Notes £ £
Administrative expenses - (54,852)
Operating loss _ (54,852)
Interest receivable and similar income - -
Loss on ordinary activities before tax ) (54,852)
Tax - -
Loss and total comprehensive income for the
financial year - (54,852)
Registered No: 06045943 3



Purpose UK Holdings Limited
.t ]

Balance sheet

as at 30 June 2016
2016 2015

Notes £000 £
Fixed assets
Investments 2 16,395,619 16,395,619
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year (1,603,685)  (1,603,685)
Net current liabilities (1,603,685) (1,603,685)
Total assets less current liabilities 14,791,934 14,791,934
Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year (15,094,229) (15,094,229)
Net liabilities (302,295) (302,295)
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 3 14,212 14,212
Profit and loss account (316,507) (316,507)
Shareholders’ funds (302,285) (302,295)

For the year ended 30 June 2016 the Company was entitled to exemption from audit under
section 480 of the Companies Act 2006 (the “Act”) relating to dormant companies.

Directors’ statements:

e The members have not required the Company to obtain an audit of its accounts for the
year in question in accordance with section 476 of the Act; and

e The directors acknowledge their responsibilities for complying with the requirements of
the Act with respect to accounting records and the preparation of accounts.

These accounts have been prepared in accordance with the provisions applicable to companies
subject to the small companies’ regime.

The financial statements on pages 3 to 7 were approved by the Board of Directors for issuance
and signed on its behalf by:

"z

K Kaye
Director

Date: 7/ ocToel. 70/4

The accompanying notes on pages 6 and 7 are an integral part of these financial statements.

Registered No: 06782981 4



Purpose UK Holdings Limited

Statement of changes in equity
For the year ended 30 June 2016

At 1 July 2015

At 30 June 2016

Called up Profit and
share capital loss account Total
£ £ £
14,212 (316,507) (302,295)
14,212 (316,507) (302,295)

Registered No: 06045943



Purpose UK Holdings Limited
L.+t ]

Notes to the financial statements
as at 30 June 2016

Purpose UK Holdings Limited is a Company domiciled and incorporated in the United Kingdom.

1. Accounting policies
Basis of preparation

The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention and in accordance
with applicable UK accounting standards.

The company has elected to retain its accounting policies for reported assets, liabilities and
equity, at the date of transition to FRS102, until there is any change to those balances, or the
company undertakes any new transactions.

Group financial statements

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption to not prepare group financial statements
for its group under section 401 of the Companies Act 2006 on the grounds that:

o the Company and all of its subsidiaries are included in the group financial statements of
Sterling Mid-Holdings Limited drawn up to 30 June 2016; and

 that the group financial statements of Sterling Mid-Holdings Limited are drawn up in a
manner equivalent to group financial statements drawn up in accordance with the
provisions of the Seventh Directive.

Consequently, the financial statements only contain information about Purpose UK Holdings
Limited as an individual company and do not contain group financial information as the parent of
a group. These financial statements are available on request from the Company Secretary at 74
E Swedesford Road, Malvern, PA 19355.

2. Investments
Investment in
subsidiaries
£

Investment in subsidiaries at 1 July 2015 and 30 June 2016 16,395,619

The principal undertakings, which are all incorporated in England and Wales, in which the
company's interest at the year end is 20% or more are as follows:

Proportion of

ordinary share
Name of undertaking capital held Nature of business
MEM Holdings Limited 100% Parent undertaking
MEM Capital Limited * 100% Parent undertaking
Purpose Acquisitions Company Limited * 100% Dormant
Rentassured Limited * 100% Dormant
MEM Consumer Finance Limited * 100% Dormant
Inventive Finance Limited * 100% Dormant
Parker Fox Limited * 100% Dormant

* Investment held indirectly

Registered No: 06045943 6



Purpose UK Holdings Limited

Notes to the financial statements
as at 30 June 2016

3. Called up share capital and reserves

2016 2015

Allotted, called up and fully paid No. £ No. £
Ordinary shares of £0.01 1,421,215 14,212 1,421,215 14,212
14,212 14,212

The Company'’s other reserves are as follows:

The profit and loss reserve represents cumulative profits or losses, net of dividends paid and
other adjustments.

4. Related party transactions

The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Sterling Mid-Holdings Limited, the group financial
statements of which are publicly available.

Accordingly, the Company has taken advantage of the exemption in section 33 of FRS 102 from
disclosing transactions with 100% members or investees of the Sterling Mid-Holdings Limited
group.

5. Ultimate parent undertaking and controlling party

The company's immediate parent undertaking is Instant Cash Loans Limited, a company
incorporated in the United Kingdom.

The largest and smallest group for which financial statements are drawn up which incorporate
the results of the Company is that headed by Sterling Mid-Holdings Limited, a company
incorporated in the Bailiwick of Jersey. Copies of the group financial statements, which include
the results of the Company, are available from 74 E Swedesford Road, Malvern, PA 19355.

The Company's ultimate parent undertaking and controlling party is Lone Star Fund VIIi
(Bermuda), L.P. a Bermuda limited partnership which is controlled by its general partner, Lone
Star Partners VIIlI, L.P., a Bermuda limited partnership, which is controlled by its general partner
Lone Star Management Co, VIII Ltd, a Bermuda exempted limited company.

Registered No: 06045943 7
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Sterling Mid-Holdings Limited
(Successor to DFC Global Corp)

Annual Financial Report
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016



DEIOitte- Doloitte & Toucho LLP

. 1700 Market Strest
Philadelphia, PA
USA

Tel; 215 246-2300
Fax: 215 569.241)
www . deloilie.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Board of Directors
Sterling Mid-Holdings Limited

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Sterling Mid-Holdings Limited
and subsidinries (Suceessor o DEC Global Corp) (the “Company ™). which comprise the consolidated
balance sheets us of June 30. 2016 and 2015, and the related consolidated statements of operations,
comprehiensive toss, stackholder’s equity. and cash Mows for the years then ended. and the related notes
1o the consolidated tinancial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

NManagement is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with the accomting principles generally aceepted in the United States ol America; this
includes the design. implemeniation. and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and
Tair presentition ol financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
Lrror,

Auditors’ Responsibility

Qur responsibility is o express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our andits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those stindards require thiat we plan and perform the audit 10 obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial stitements are free from material misstatement.

Anaaditinvobves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the Tuancial staements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessiment of the risks ot material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making thase risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Company's
preparation and Fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Company '~ imernal comral. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evahating the appropristencss o accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting cstimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
siements,

We behieve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
vur audit opinion.

Member of
Deitte Toucho Tonmotsu Limied



Opinion

I our opinion. the cansolidaied financial statements referred 10 above present fairly. in all material
respects. the tinancial position o' Sterling Mid-Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries as of June 30. 2016
and 2015, und the resulbts ot their operations and their cash flows for the years then ended in accordance
with accounting principles seneralhy accepted in the United States of America,

We e alsoaudited the adjostments to the 2014 consolidated financial statements of the Company 1o
reflect the effects ot the rerospeciive adjustments to the acquisition date fair values for the June 13. 2014
acquisition of DIC Globiat Corp, by the Company discussed in Notes 3 and 13 to the consolidated
financial stateinents Cihie business combination™). Our procedures included audit procedures to evaluaie
management’s judgments and estimates regarding the fair values ascribed to all assets acquired and
liabitities assomed, and the resuliant goodwill recognized in connection with the business combination. In
aur apinion, such retrospective adjustments are appropriate and have been properly applied. However. we
were not engiged 1o mndit revies o apply any precedures 10 the 2014 consolidated financial-stateineuts
of the Company uther than with respect 1o the retrospective adjustments and, accordingly. we do not |
Cxpress i opinion o iy ather funm of assurance on the 2014 consolidated financial statements taken as
A whale,

Predecessor Auditors' Opinion on 2084 Financial Statements

The consolidated finangiat stements of the Company for the periods from June 14, 2014 1o June 30, 2014
(Sterting Mid-Hotdings Cimited). and July 1. 2013 10 Jane 13, 2014 (DFC Global Cormp.). before the effects
of the retraspective adjustments to the acquisition date fair values for the June 13, 2014 acquisition of DFC
Globid Corp. by the Companny, discussed in Notes 3 and 13 to the consolidated financial statements, were
sudited by other auditoes whose report. dated October 13, 2004, expressed an unmodificd opinion on those
stiatemeis,

September 28, 201060

AMember of
Deloitto Touche Tohmatsu Limited



Report of Independent Auditors

Board of Directors
Sterling Mid-Holdings Ltd.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Sterling Mid-Holdings
Ltd. (Successor), before the effects of the adjustments to the Successor’s consolidated financial
statements to retrospectively apply the adjustments to provisional amounts recognized in
connection with the acquisition of DFC Global Corp (Predecessor) by Sterling Mid-Holdings Ltd.
(Successor) on June 13, 2014 described in Notes 3 and 13, and DIFC Global Corp (Predecessor)
(collectively, the “Company™), which comprise the consolidated statements of operations.
comprehensive income (loss), stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for the period from June 14,
2014 to June 30, 2014 (Successor) and the period from July 1, 2013 to June 13, 2014 (Predecessor),
and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free of material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements, before the
effects of the adjustments described above, based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of
the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting



estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above, before the effects of the adjustments
described above, present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated results of operations and
cash flows of Sterling Mid-Holdings Ltd. for the period from June 14, 2014 through June 30, 2014
(Successor), and of DFC Global Corp for the period from July 1, 2013 through June 13, 2014
(Predecessor) in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

We were not engaged to audit, review, or apply any procedures to the adjustments to
retrospectively apply the adjustments to provisional amounts recognized in connection with the
acquisition of DFC Global Corp (Predecessor) by Sterling Mid-Holdings Ltd. (Successor) on
June 13, 2014 described in Notes 3 and 13, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or any
other form of assurance about whether such adjustments are appropriate and have properly applied.
Those adjustments were audited by other auditors.

Sant ¥ MLLP

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania
October 13, 2014



PART 1. FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Item 1. Financial Statements
STERLING MID-HOLDINGS LIMITED.
(SUCCESSOR TO DFC GLOBAL CORP)
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS (In millions)

ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents

Restricied cash (Includes $0 and $3. 1 in variable interest entities -see note 10)
Consumecr loans, net:
Consumcr loans
LLess: Allowance for consumer loan losses
Consumer loans. net (Includes $0 and $130.2 in variable interest entitics -sec note 10)
Pawn loans, net of an allowance o' $1.2 and $0.2
Loans in default. netof an allowance of $43.2 and $62.8 (Includes $0 and $17.2 in variable interest
entities -see note 10)
Other receivables
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Current deferred tax assct
Total current asscts

L.ong term consumer loans, net of an allowance of $1.7 (Includes $0 and $41.8 in variable interest
entitics -sec note 10)

Property and cquipment, net of accumulated depreciation of $34.1 and $63.8
Goodwill and other intangiblcs, nct
Debt issuance costs, net of accumulated amortization of' $6.8 and $14.7
Non-current deferred tax asset, net
Other
Total Assets .
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS® EQUITY
Current Liabilitics:
Accounts payable
Income 1axes payable

Accrued expenses and other labilities (Includes $0 and $0.8 in variable inerest entitics -see note 10)

Current portion of long-term debt
Current deferred tax liability
Total current liabilities
Fair value of derivatives
Long-term deferred tax liability
Reserve for uncertain tax positions
Long-term dcbt (Includes $0 and $100.0 in variablc interest entitics -sce note 10)
Other non-current liabilities

Stockholders® equity:

Common stock, £1.00 par value: 10,000 sharcs auwhorized; 201 and 801 shares issucd and
outstanding at June 30. 20135 and Junc 30, 2016, respectively.

Additional paid-in capital
Accumulated deficit
Accumulated other comprehensive loss
Towl stockholders™ equity

Total Liabilities and Stockhoiders® Equity

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statcments.

June 30, 2015

June 30,2016

$ 1380 $ 148.1
4.5 7.6
152.0 234.3
(19.6) (27.6)
132.4 206.9
109.3 97.8
21.6 27.9
29.6 25.7
574 15.6
4.0 —
496.8 559.6
— 41.8
97.6 90.8
806.4 769.9
28.7 30.9
1.4 14.9
17.2 14.3
S 14581 § 15224
32.6
0.5
136.2 101.2
45.2 63.3
0.2 —
214.7 196.0
— 0.9
8.2 10.7
36.7 3.0
892.2 1.036.8
37.4 28.2
781.8 951.8
(374.8) (625.9)
(138.1) (107.7)
268.9 218.2
S 14581 S§  1.5224




These financial statements together with the accompanying notes 10 consolidated financial statements were approved and authorized for
issuance by the Board of Directors on the date below and were signed on its behalf by:

2

S Howard

Dircctor

Dae: - 23,00, 0L}



STERLING MID-HOLDINGS LIMITED.
(SUCCESSOR TO DFC GLOBAL CORP)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Revenues:
Consumer lending
Check cashing
Pawn service fees and sales
Money transter fees
Gold sales
Othier
Total revenues
Operating expenses:
Salaries and benefits
Provision tor loan losses
Occupancy
Purchasced gold cosis
Advertising
Depreciation and amortization
Maintenance and repairs
Bank charges and armored carricr service
Returned checks, net and cash shortages
Other
Total operating expenses
Operating margin
Corporatc and other expenses:
Corporate expenses
Other depreciation and amortization
Interest expense, net

Goodwill and other intangiblec asscts impairment charge

Unrcalized foreign exchange (gain) loss

Loss (gain) on derivatives not designated as hedges
(Proceeds trom) pravision for litigation seitlements

l.oss on store closings
Other expense. net

L.oss before income taxes
Income tax provision
Net loss

(In millions)

Predccessor Successor
July 1, 2013 - June 14, 2014 - Year Ended Yecar Ended
June 13, 2014 June 30, 2014 June 30, 2015 | June 30, 2016
S 602.0 (S 200 |S 390.4 18 405.4
112.2 53 107.0 96.7
926 43 729 57.4
343 1.3 31.2 27.0
38.2 1.7 46.6 44.1
70.6 3.6 65.7 53.1
949.9 36.2 713.8 683.7
238.7 11.6 215.6 181.7
180.8 4.0 97.2 121.6
71.3 3.7 71.1 523
36.2 1.7 355 36.7
53.0 2.0 354 28.9
26.6 1.3 25.0 21.4
20.4 .1 244 17.3
20.8 1.1 18.5 15.7
9.3 — 11.6 10.3
90.7 4.7 82.1 63.6
747.8 31.2 616.4 549.5
202.1 5.0 97.4 134.2
99.9 5.5 100.7 92.9
16.2 1.1 18.5 15.7
107.3 4.3 959 108.0
134.2 — 28.0 —_
0.1) (0.1) 31.3 91.2
— 1.9 (16.1 —_
22.0 (0.3) 22 4.1
1.0 59 5.6 7.0
29.9 23.2 142.3 57.5
(208.3) (36.3) (311.0 (242.2)
8.2 2135 6.0 8.9
3 (216.548 (57.8) [ 317008 (251.1)

Sce accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.




STERLING MID-HOLDINGS LIMITED.
(SUCCESSOR TO DFC GLOBAL CORP)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

Net loss

Other comprehensive income (loss):
Foreign currency translation adjustment
IFair value adjustments for derivatives, net 2
Amortization of accumulated other comprehensive

incunie relaied w de-desigiated cash tlow hedges ™
Other comprehensive income (loss)
Comprchensive loss

(In millions)

Predecessor

Successor

June 14, 2014

July 1.2013 - - Junc 30, Year Ended Year Ended
June 13, 2014 2014 June 30, 2015 | June 30, 2016
s @6sls 188 Gi1rofs (s
46.3 16.6 (154.7) 31.0
53 — — (0.6)
0.7 — — —
S 323 |8 16.6 1S (154.7%$ 304
$ (164.2) 18 (41.2) |8 “471.74$ (220.7)

(1) The ending balance of the forcign currency translation adjustments included in accumulated other comprehensive income
an the balance sheet were gains (losses) of” $46.3 million, $16.6 million. and $(138.1) million and $(107.1) million as of
the Predecessor period ended June 13, 2014 and the Successor period ended June 30, 2014, June 30. 2013 and June 30.

2016 respectively.
(2)

Net of’ $1.4 million of tax for the Predecessor period ended June 13, 2014 and $0.3 million ot tax for the Successor period

ended June 30, 2016. The ending balance of the unrcalized derivatives, net included in accumulated other comprehensive
income on the balance sheets were losses of $3.2 million for the Predecessor period ended June 13,2014 and 0.6 million

for the Successor period ended June 30, 2016.
(3)

Net of $0.3 million of tax for the Predecessor period ended June 13, 2014,

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss). net of related tax. included unrcalized losses on terminated cross-
currency interest rate swaps of $3.7 million for the Predecessor period ended June 13, 2014,

Sce accompanying notes o consolidated tinancial statements.



Balance, June 30, 2013
Comprchensive (loss) income
Net loss
Other comprehensive income
Total comprchensive loss
Restricted stock grants

Stock options exercised

STERLING MID-HOLDINGS LIMITED.
(SUCCESSOR TO DFC GLOBAL CORP)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS® EQUITY
(In millions, except share data)
for the Predecessor period July 1, 2013 to June 13, 2014

Vested portion of granted restricted stock and

restricted stock units
Repurchase of common stock
Reurement of commaon stock
Other stuck compensation
Balance, June 13,2014

c:)':l';‘l‘:lll‘l:il:’: ¥ Additional Non- A“?)l:;:jc':‘ el Total
- l'.z\i(Hn Accumulated Controlling Comprehensive Stockholders’
Shares Amount Capital Deficit Interest Income (L.oss) Equity
40.112.266 S — S 473 S (7.3) § ) (15.1) § 424.9
(216.5) (216.5)
523 323
(164.2)
283,248 —
113.818 0.7 0.7
18.1 18,1
(1,712,365} (2L.5) (21.5)
(101,507)
28
38,695,460 S — § 4474 S {223.8) § — S 372 26

Sec accompanying notes o censolidated financial statements.

w



Balance, June 14, 2014
Comprehensive (loss) income
Net loss
Other comprehiensive income

Total comprehensive income (loss)

STERLING MID-HOLDINGS LIMITED.
(SUCCESSOR TO DFC GLOBAL CORP)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDER'S EQUITY

(In millions, except share data)
for the Successor period June 14, 2014 to June 30, 2016

Common Stock

Accumulated

Capital comribution from an afiihiate of Lone

Sar Funds
Balance. Junc 30, 2014
Comprehensive (loss) income
Net loss
Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income (loss)

Capital contribution from an affiliate of Lone

Siar Funds

Balance, june 30, 2015
Comprchensive (loss) income

Net loss

QOther comprehensive income
Total comprehensive incame (loss)

Capitwl conteibution from an affiliate of Lone

Star Funds
Balance, June 30. 2016

ine Additional on Total
Outstanding Pald-in Accumulated Conlprlc=$:nsi\‘c Stockholder’s
Shares Amount Capital Deficit Income Equity
(I - § - 8 - S — —
(57.8) (57.8)
16.6 16,6
(41,2)
100 700.0 700.0
100§ — § 7000 S (572.8) S 166 S 638.8
(317.0) (317.0)
(134.7) (134.7)
(154.7)
100 81.8 81.8
200§ — S 781.8 § (374.8) § (138.1) S 268.9
S (251.1) (251.1)
$ 30.4 304
(220.7)
600 S 170.0 S 170.0
801 S — S 9518 § (625.9) (107.7) § 218.2

Sce accompanying notes 1o consolidated financial statcments.



STERLING MID-HOLDINGS LIMITED.
(SUCCESSOR TO DFC GLOBAL CORP)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Cash flows from opcerating activities:
Net loss
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided by
(used in) operating activities:
Depreciation, accretion and amoruzation
Goodwill and other intangible assets impairment
Change in fair value ot derivatives not designated as hedges
Provision for loan losses
Non-cash stock compensation
Guain on sale of subsidiary
Guin on sale of loans held for investments
L.oss un dispusal of fixed asscts
Gain on derivatives not designated as hedges
Unrealized foreign exchange (gun) loss
Deferred tax (benefit)/expense
Accrued transaction costs
Accretion of debt discount and deferred issuance costs
Change in assets and liabilities (net of effcct of acquisitions):

(Increase) decrease in pawn loan fees and service charges
receivable
(Decrease) increase in finance and service charges receivable

(Increase) decrease in other receivables
{Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses and other

Increase (decrease) in accounts payable, accrued expenses and
other liabilitics

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities:
Net (increasc) decrecase in single payment loans
Net (increase) decrease in instaliment loans
Net {increase) decrease of pawn loans

Net increase in restricted cash
Procceds trom sales of toans held tor investments
Acquisition of Predecessor, net of cash acquired

Acquisitions, nct of cash acquired

Additions (o propenty and equipment

Disposal of a subsidiary. net ot cash disposed of
Net cash used in investing activities

(In millions)

Predecessor

Successor

July 1,2013 -
June 13, 2014

June 14, 2014 -
June 30, 2014

Year Ended June
30, 2015

Year Ended
June 30, 2016

S (216.5) |S {57.1 § (317.0) § (251.1)
48.1 24 50.4 45.2

1342 — 28.0 —

-— 1.9 —_— 0.9

180.8 4.0 97.2 121.6

209 — —_ —

(1.6) — — _

- — — L9

0.5 0.1 26.8 7.0

- - (16.1) —_

(0.1) (0.1) 33 91.2

4.6 373 2.0) 2.4

— {12.2) — —_

17.3 — — —

03 (0.3) 1.4 2.2

(19.0) 1.8 {21.8) (28.7)

(7.4) 4.4 (2.7) 5.3

10.6 9.5) 2.2 21.7

(1.2) (272.3) 38.5 (44.8)

S 1705 18 i55.2) § {61.8) S (25.5)
(74.2) 1.9 (47.4) (61.0)

— — (31.2) (153.6)

8.0 (0.3) 4.6 (10.8)

- — (4.5) (3.1)

— — —_— (13.0)

— (199.7) - —

(26.4) — (41.8) (0.4)

{31.6) (0.4) (26.4) (38.9)

7.2 — — —

S (117.0) {S (198.5) S (146.7) S (280.8)



STERLING MID-HOLDINGS, LTD.
(SUCCESSOR TO DFC GLOBAL CORP)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS — (continued)

Cash flows from financing activities:
Capital contribution from Lone Star Funds
Procceds from securitization facility
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debi
Repayment of Predeccssor debt
Proceeds from the exercise of stock options
Proceeds from demand note from Lone Star Aftiliates
Repayment of demand note from Lone Siar Affiliates
Praceeds from revolving line ol credit
Repayment of long-term debt and revolving line of credit
Procceds from termination of cross currency swaps
Repurchase of common stock
Payment of debt issuance and other costs
Net cash provided by (used in) linancing activitics
Eftect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents
Net (deereasc) increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents a1 beginning of period
Cash and cash cquivalents atend of period
Supplementa) disclosures of cash flow Information:
Interest pud

Income taxes paid

(In millions)

Predecessor

Successor

July £, 2013 -

June 14, 2014 -

Year Ended June

Ye¢ar Ended

June 13,2004 | June 30, 2014 30,2015 June 30, 2016
s —Is 7000 S SIS S 170.0
— — - 100.0

— 800.0 - —

— (1.033.3) — —

07 - _ —

- — — 37.0

— —_ — (11.0)

- 10.0 537.8 396.1

(96.0) —_ (456.4) (358.5)

388 — 0.4 —

(21.5) - - _

2.9) (48.9) (0.3) (7.3)

3 (80.9) 4578 S 1633 S 3263
9.2 2.1 (23.0 9.9)

3 TEEN B 2062 S (68.2) S 10.1
196.2 - 206.2 138.0

S 179.0 2062 S 1380 § 148.1
s 553 3328 9.1 S 97.1
173 — s 52 8 38

Sce accompanying nates to consolidated financial statements.



STERLING MID-HOLDINGS LIMITED.
(SUCCESSOR TO DFG GLOBAL CORP)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

I. Organization and Business

Sterling Mid-Holdings Limited. ("SMHL". the "Company” or the "Successor”). a Jersey Channel Islands company, is a
dircet whotly-owned subsidiary of Sterling Holdings Lid.. which is in turn a wholly-owned subsidiary of LSF8 Sterling
Partners, L.P. ("L.SF8") a Bermuda partnership and an afliliate of Lone Star Funds ("Lonc Siar"), and was formed on May 2,
2014, LSF8 and Lone Star ave referred 1o hercin as "Parent” or "paremt companies”. Prior 1o the acquisition of DFC Glabal
Corp. on Junc 13. 2014, the Successor had no operating activity. Throughout these financial statements and notes. the term
"Predecessor”. reters o DFC Global Corp. and its wholly-owned subsidiarics prior to the change of control on Junc 13, 2014.
The term "Successor” refers 1o Sterling Mid-Holdings Limited. following the acquisition of DFC Global Corp. by an affiliate of’
Lone Star ("the Merger").

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles in the United States ("GAAP"). and are those of Successor and the Predecessor. In the opinion of
management, all adjusiments of a normal recurring nature considered necessary for a fair presentation have been included. The
Predecessor is the parent company of Dollar Financial Group, lnc. (*“DFG™). The activities of the Predecessor consist primarily
of its investment in DFG. The Predecessor has no employces or operating activitics.

The Company and the Predecessor through their respective subsidiaries. provide retail financial services 1o the gencral
public through a network of 1.197 locations (of which 1.188 are company owned) which are operating principally as The
Money Shop®. Money Man®, InstaCheques®, Suttons & Robertsons®, The Check Cashing Store®, Setina®, Helsingin Panuis™
Super Efectivo®, MoncyNow!® and Express Credit Amanet® in the United Kingdom ("UK"). Canada. the United States ("US)".
Sweden, Finland. Poland. Spain and Romania. This network of stores offers a variety of financial services including unsccured
short-term consumer loans. secured pawn scrvices. gold buying, check cashing, money transfer services and various other
related services. In addition to our retail stores. we ofler unsecured consumer loans online in the UK. the US, Canada, Sweden.
Finland and Spain. primarily under the brand names The Money Shop®. Payday UK?®. Payday Express®. Money Man®.
paydavloan.ca®™, Risicum® and OK Money®. In Poland, we ofler our products under the trade name Oplimas‘“ through a
system of brokers. call centers and a network of tocal representatives who receive compensation for their services. In Romania,
we offer secured pawn lending services. The Company exited its Dealers’ Financial Services business effective June 30, 2015,

As morce fully discussed in Note 3 Business Combinations, Acquisitions and Divestiture. on June 13, 2014, Sterling Mid-
Holdings Limited acquired all the outstanding shares of the Predecessor for a purchasc price of approximately $378.7 mitlion
(the "Merger").

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with US GAAP requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that atlect the amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes. On an ongoing
basis. management cvatuatces its estimaies and judgments. including those related o revenue recognition, loss reserves,
valuation allowance for deferred income taxes, litigation reserves. valuation of acquired tangible and intangible asscts and
liabilitics and impairment assessment of goodwill and other intangible asscts. Management bases its estimates on historical
expericnce and various other assumptions that arc believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. the results of which form
the basis for making judgments about the carrying valucs of asscts and liabilities. Actual results may difter from thesc
estimatcs.

Risks & Uncertainties

We are subject t regulatory oversight by various local. state. provincial and federal regulatory bodies. In the U.K.. we are
regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority (“FCA™). which recently granted us full authorization as a consumer lender. In the
U.S.. we are regulated by various states and by the Consumer Financial Protection Burcau (*CFPB™). In Canada, we are
regulated by regulators and legislation at both the provincial and federal levels. Qur operations in Sweden are regulated by the
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Lable ol Contenis
STERLING MID-HOLDINGS, LTD.
(SUCCESSOR TO DFC GLOBAL CORP)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (continued)
2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Swedish Financial Supervisory Authority. our Finnish operations by the Regional State Administrative Ageney of Southern
Fintand. and our Polish, Spanish and Romanian operations by various national regulations. We belicve our relationships with
our regulators in our key markets are good.

In the UK, the Company operates in a highly regulated industry which has undergone substantial regulatory change.
primarily as a result of the transition of oversight to the Financial Conduct Authority ("FCA™) effective April [, 2014, On
February 17, 2016. the Company’s UK affiliate. Instamt Cash Loans Limited. rading primarily as The Money Shop. received
full awthorization as a consumer lending firm from the FCA. Instant Cash Loans was previously operating under the FCA's
interim permission since April 1. 2014, The Company’s consumer lending operations in the UK. which have historically been
principally single payment short-term loans. represented 17.1% of consolidated consumer lending revenue for the year ended
June 30. 2016. In connection with the regulatory oversight by the FCA. the Company has made significant changes to its
consumer lending business within the UK including. but not timited 1o, (i) limitation on loan rollovers. (ii) limitations on the
use of continuous payment authority to recover loans, and (iii) changes in marketing and other loan origination practices. The
Company has also revised the alTordability asscssments used in loan originations and this change, and ali other changes
described herein. has resulted in a signiticant deeline in owtstanding consumer loans within the Company’s UK businesses.

Prior to April 1. 2014, in the UK. the Company's cansumer lending activities were primarily regutated by the Office of
Fair Trading (OFT™). which was responsible for licensing and regulating companies that offer consumer credit. During fiscal
year 2013, the OFT announced significant changes to marketing, rollover and collection practices which have had and are
expected 10 have a significant impact on the Company's short-term loan portfolio within its UK businesses. Eftective Aprit |,
2014, the OF T wransferred regulatory authority over the consumer credit industry to the new FCA. The FCA is now the
regulator for. among others. credit card issuers. payday loan companics. pawn brokers. rent-te-own companies. debt
management and collection firms and providers of debt advice. The FCA s also responsible for regulating and sctting conduct
standards for banks. credit unions and similar institutions.

In October 2013. the FCA issucd a consuhation paper addressing how it proposed to regulate the consumer credit industry
when it assumed regulatory authority on April 1, 2014, On February 28. 2014, the FCA published its Handbook. which
confirmed and clarified the final form of the rules and limitations to which we would be subject under the FCA authority in the
UK. Among other things. the Handbook imposed a limitation of two rollovers and two uses of continuous payment authority
per loan. and enhanced affordability assessment criteria. which additional requirements are expected to negatively impact the
Company's UK operations for a transition period cextending from implementation through the foresceable future.

On November 11. 2014, the FCA confirmed its July 2014 payday toan price cap proposal. Beginning January 2. 20135. the
price cap structure includes the following:

+ Initial cost cap ot'0.8% per day
»  Default fee caps fixed at £13
« Total cost cap ol 100% .

During the year ended June 30. 2015 and June 30. 2016. the Company made various changes to its UK consumer lending
operations including. but not limited to. (i) introduction of a multi-payment loan product. (ii) consolidation of its UK
operations, and (iii) reduced the number of retail stores in the UK. White the Company has not scen the full impact of these
initiatives. it is possible that these actions could result in a further impairment of propeny and equipment. goodwill and other
intangible asscts in future periods. in addition to the recognition of assct impairments. fcase and cmployce termination costs
alrcady incurred during the prior and current fiscal vear. Furthermore, the contribution of UK consumer lending revenue may
continuc to decline in the ncar term as the Company continucs 1o transition its consumer lending activitics within the UK.

In addition. in July 2010. the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act was enacted. which, among
other things. created the Consumer Financial Protection Bureau (the “CFPR™). In the United States. the CFPB has regulatory.
supervisory and enforcement powers over certain non-bank providers ol consumer financial products and services. such as us.
Under the CFPB’s short-term lending supervision program. which aims to ensure that short-term lenders are following federal
consumer financial laws in their US operations. the CFPB gathers information trom short-term lenders to evaluate their policies
and procedurcs. asscss whether lenders arc in compliance with federal consumer financial laws. and identify risks to consumers
throughout the lending process. Any restrictive action by the CFPB with respect to short-term consumer loans could have an
adversc impact on our business. results of operations and financial condition.
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lable o Contems
STERLING MID-HOLDINGS, LTD.
(SUCCESSOR TO DFC GLOBAL CORP)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continucd)

acquired in such buy back arrangements arc now accounted for as purchased gold inventory (upon title and risk of loss transfer)
and rccorded as a sale when the gold is sold. or smelied or sold to a gold dealer if the customer dues not rewurn to buy back the
gold.

The following table summarizes the impact of the corrections on the consolidated balance sheet as of June 30. 201 5:

Description As Reported Restatement As Restated
Pawn loans, net ol an allowance $ 117.0 (1.7) 8 109.3
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 49.7 7.7 574

The tollowing table summarizes the impact of the corrections on the consalidated statement ot operations tor the year
ended June 30, 2015:

Description As Reported Restatement As Restated
Pawn service fees and sales S 81.8 (8.9) S 72.9
Gold sales 35.2 114 § 46.6
Purchascd gold costs 33.0 25 8§ 355

The following table summarizes the impact of the corrections on the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
ended June 30. 2015:

Description As Reported Restatement As Restated
Cash flow from operating activitics:
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenscs and other $ 248 § (0.6) $ 242
Cash flow from investing activities:
Decreasc of pawn loans, net 4.0 0.6 4.6

Reclassification to Previous Periods

In addition. as a result of restructuring. legal entity and facility consolidations in the UK during fiscat 2013, we identified
certain cost centers related to sales training and administration, tacilities and 1'T tunctions supporting storc operations which
were included in corporate expensces that should be included in operating expenses in the UK reporting unit. These
reclassifications between corporate expenses and operating expense were made during the 2016 fiscal year. The following table
reflects the reclassitication of certain operating and corporate expensces in the consolidated statement of operations tor the year
ended Junc 30. 2015 10 conform with the presentation for the vear ended Junc 30. 2016:

Reclassification

Description As Reported adjustment As Reclassified
Salary and benetits $ 2174 $ (1.8) S 215.6
Occupancy 68.7 24 7.1
Advertising 33.6 (0.2) 354
Depreciation and amortization 253 (0.3) 25.0
Maintenance and repairs : 211 33 24.4
Other 78.9 3.2 82.1
Corporate expenses 107.7 (7.0) 100.7
Other depreciation and amortization 18.1 04 18.5



STERLING MID-HOLDINGS, LTD.
(SUCCESSOR TO DFC GLOBAL CORP)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

The fotlowing table summarizes the impact of the reclassification on the consolidated statement of cash flows for the vear
ended Junce 30, 2015:

Rceclassification  As Reclassified

Description As Reported adjustment

Cash flow from operating activitics:

Increase (decrease) in accounts payable, accrued

cxpensces and other liabilities 34.0 4.5 38.5
Cash flow from investing activitics:

Originations of pawn loans $ (261) 261.0 S —
Repayment of pawn loans 265 (265.0) —
Net (increase) decrease of pawn loans —_ (4.0) (4.0)
Net increase in restricted cash — 4.5) 4.5)
Net (increase) decrease in consumer loans (78.6) 78.6 —
Net (increase) decrease in single payment loans — (47.4) (47.4)
Net (increase) decrease in installment loans — (31.2) (31.2)

The following tables summarizes the recasting reflected in the Financing Reccivable footnote 8 for the year ended June
30, 20135 10 reflect the realignment ol the Company's product porttolio management stratcgies and the impact on the signiticant
credit metrics:

Reclassification
Description As Reported Adjustment As Reclassified

Performing retail-based consumer loans - Gross 104.8 (104.8) —
Performing retail-based consumer loans - Allowance (13.2) 13.2 —_
Performing internet-based consumer loans - Gross 47.2 (47.2) —
Performing internet-based consumer loans - Allowance (6.4) 6.4 —_
Non-performing retail-based consumer loans - Gross 322 (32.2) —
Non-performing retail-based consumer loans - Allowance (28.3) 28.3 —
Non-performing internet-based consumer loans - Gross 326 (32.6) -_—
Non-performing internet-based consumer loans -

Allowance (14.9) 14.9 —
Pertorming single payment loans - Gross . 102.8 102.8
Performing single payment loans - Allowance — (6.1) (6.1
Performing installment loans - Gross — 49.2 49.2
Performing installment loans - Allowance — (13.9) (13.5)
Non-periorming singic payment loans - Gross — 47.2 47.2
Non-performing single payment loans - Allowance —_ 32.4) (32.4)
Non-performing installment loans - Gross — 17.6 17.6
Non-performing installment loans - Allowance — (10.8) (10.8)
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STERLING MID-HOLDINGS, LTD.
(SUCCESSOR TO DFC GLOBAL CORP)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (continucd)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Reclassification
Description As Reported Adjustment  As Reclassified
Retail-based consumer loans 1-30 days past due 6.7 (6.7) —_
Retail-based consumer loans 31-59 days past due 3.1 3.1 —
Retail-based consumer loans 60-90 days past due 1.6 (1.6) —
Retail-based consumer loans greater than 90 days past duc 6.9 (6.9) —
Retail-based consumer loans Current 75 (73) —
Retail-based consumer loans recorded investment > 90
days and accruing 1.4 (1.4) —
lnternet-based consumer loans 1-30 days past duc 4.5 (4.5) —
Internet-based consumer loans 3 1-39 days past duc 2.2 (2.2) —
Internet-based consumer loans 60-90 days past duc 2.6 2.6) —
Internet-bascd consumer loans greater than 90 days past
due 6.2 (6.2) -
Internct-based consumer loans Current 50.4 (50.4) —
Internet-based consumer loans recorded investment > 90
days and accruing — — —
Single payment loans 1-30 days past due — 10.6 10.6
Single payment loans 31-59 days past duc — 6.8 6.8
Single payment loans 60-90 days past duc — 7.4 7.4
Single payment loans greater than 90 days past due — 224 224
Singlc payment loans Current —_ 102.8 102.8
Single payment loans recorded investment > 90 days and
aceruing — — —
lastallment loans (-30 days past duc —_ 75 7.5
Instaliment loans 31-59 days past due — 4.9 49
Installment loans 60-90 days past duc — 4.2 4.2
Installment loans greater than 90 days past duc — 9.2 9.2
Installment loans Curremt — ‘ 41 41
lqstal_lmcm loans recorded investment > 90 days and . 51 5
accruing 2.
Description As Reported  Restatement As Restated

Loan Receivable on Nonaccrual Status

Retail-based consumer loans $ 322§ (32.2) 0

Internet-based consumer loans 32.6 (32.0) 0

Consumer loans — 64.8 64.8

Revenue Recognition

Revenue from consumer foan fees includes interest income. finance charges. fees {or services provided through our
company operated stores. service charges. minimum fees. late fees. nonsufticient funds fees and any other fees or charges
permited by applicable laws and pursuant to the agreement with the borrower and the type of loan. For unscecured short-term
consumer loans. which generally have terms ranging from | to 45 days. and for multiple payment loans up to 3 ycars. revenucs
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(SUCCESSOR TO DFC GLOBAL CORP)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (continucd)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policics (continucd)

are recognized using the interest method. Loan origination fees are recognized as an adjustment w the yield on the related loan.
Our reserve policy regarding these loaas is summarized below under ~Allowance for Consumer Loan Losses.” Revenues from
our cheek cashing, money order sales. money transfer and other ancillary services reported in other revenues are all recognized
when the transactions are completed at the point-of-sale in the store.

Secured pawn loans are offered at most of our retail tinancial services focations in the UK and Poland and at our pawn
shaps in the UK. Sweden. Finland, Romania and certain of our Canadian and US retail stores. Pawn loans are short-term in
nature and are sccured by the customier’s personal property. which we refer to as a pledge. At the time of pledge. the loan is
recorded and interest and fees. net of costs are accrued for over the life of the loan. If the loan is not repaid. the collateral is
deemed torteited and the pawned item will, in most markets. cither go up for auction, or in the case ot gold, smelted by a
contractor 1o recover the value of the gold. I the item is sold or gold smielted. proceeds are used to recover the toan value,
interest acerued and fees. Generally. excess funds reccived from the sale are repaid to the customers in the UK Sweden and
Finland. As with our unsccured short-term consumer foans, revenues are recognized using the interest method and foan
arigination fees, net. are recognized as an adjustment to the yicld on the related loan.

In Spain we conduct business similar o "pawn-broking” by applying a “buy back™ model because the legal tramework in
Spain requires a customer to legally wransfer the ownership and risk of loss of an object of value to us by exccuting a sale
agreement. with an arrangement to buy back the item within a specific timeframe (generally up to three months) at a pre-agreed
buy back price. The customer agrees to pay the higher buy back price for the cost of storing and safekeeping the item and to
account for any expected increasc in the value of the item or. alternatively. pays the additional fee for the execution of the buy
back arrangement. I the customer chooses not 1 buy back the objeet of value within the agreed upon period. we may dispose
of the item cither through a sale in our retail window or smelting and sale of the gold. Inventory is recorded when the customer
sclls the gold object to us. and revenue is recognized and recorded when we sell the gold through our retail window or smelting
process.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash includes cash in stores and demand deposits with financial institutions. Cash equivalents are defined as short-term.
highly liquid investments both readily convertible 10 known amounts of cash and so near maturity that there is insignificant risk
of changes in value because of changes in interest rates.

Consumer Loans, Net

Unsecured short-term and longer-term installment loans that the Company originates are reflected on the consolidated
balance sheets in conswner loans, nct and are stated at the principal amount less deferred fees. Consumer loans, net are reported
net o' a reserve as deseribed below under “Loan Loss Allowance™.

Loans in Default

Loans in default consist of unsccured short-term and longer term installment consumer loans originated by the Company
which are in default status. An allowance for the defaulted loans reccivable is established and is included in the loan loss
provision in the period that the loan is placed in defauls stawus. The reserve is reviewed monthly and any change to the loan loss
allowance as a result of historical loan pertormance. current and expected collection patierns and current economic trends is
included with the Company's loan loss provision. [ the loans remain in a defaulied status for an extended period of time.
typically 180 days. an allowance for the entire amount of the loan is recorded and the reccivable is charged off.

Allowance for Consumer Loan Losses

The Company maintaing a loan loss altowance for estimated losses for unsecured consumer loans. To estimate the
appropriate level of loan loss allowance. the Company considers known relévant internal and external factors that affeet toan
collectability. including the amount of outstanding unsecured loans owed to the Company, historical loans charged ofY. current
collection patterns and current economic rends. The Company’s current Joan loss allowance is based on its net charge-ofls.
typically expressed as a percentage of loan amounts originated for the last twelve months applied against the principal balance
of oustanding loans. Management also considers internal and external factors such as the regulatory environment. credit quality
trends. underwriting and collection practices and other risks as necessary to estimate credit losscs in the portfolio. Such
qualitative factors arc used to reflect changes in the loan portfolios collectability characteristics not capured by historical loss
data. As these conditions change. the Company may nced to record additional altowances in future periods.

Single Pavment Loans
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Generally, when a short-term loan is originated. the customer reccives the cash proceeds in exchange for a post-dated
check or a written authorization to initiate a charge to the customer’s bank account on the stated maurity date of the loan. If the
cheek or the debit to the customer’s account is returned from the bank unpaid. the loan is placed in default status and an
allowance for this defaulied loan receivable is established and is included in loan loss provision expensc in the period that the
loan is placed in default stawus. This reserve is reviewed monthly and any additional provision to the loan loss reserve as a result
of historical loan performance. current collection patterns and current cconomic trends is included in loan loss provision
expense. I a loan remains in defaulted status for an extended period of time, typically 180 days. an allowance for the entire
amount ol the foan is recorded and the loan is charged oft. Recoveries on loans that were completcly charged oft are credited o
the allowance when collectied.

Installment Pavment and Term Loans

The allowance is generally computed by applying loss factors to outstanding loans principal balances over an estimated
loss emergence period. The loss emergence period represents the time period between the date at which the loss is estimated to
have been incurred and the ultimate realization ol that loss (through a charge-o11). Installment payment and term loans not in
*debt management™ are collated based onthe detault or aging-bucket with 1655 percenmages consideriig the probability of loans
rolling o charge-ofT. For recognition of allowance for loan losses, US GAAP requires an impairment 10 be recognized when it
is probable a loss has been incurred. Estimated toss emergence periods may vary by product and may change over time:
management applies judgment in estimating loss cmergence periods. using available credit information and wrends. Loss factors
arc statistically derived and sensitive to changes in delinguency status. and other risk tactors. The Company uses a number of’
different forecasting modecls 1o estimate both the probability of default and loss severity. including delinquency roll rate models
and credit loss severity models. In developing probability of default and loss scverity assumptions. the Company also considers
known and anticipated changes in economic environment. unemplovment rates and other risk indicators.

This reserve is reviewed monthly and any additional provision 1o the loan loss reserve as a result of historical {oan
performance. current collection patterns and current economic trends is included in loan loss provision expense. If a loan
remains in defaulied status for an extended peried of time, typically 90 to 180 days. an atlowance for the entire amount of the
loan is recorded and the loan is charged off. Loan sales on accasion accur prior to reaching 180 days depending on the region.
Recoverics on foans that were completely charged-off are credited to the allowance when collected.

Management also considers internal and external factors such as the regulatory environment, credit quality trends,
underwriting and collection practices and other risks as necessary o estimate credit losses in the portfolio. Such qualitative
factors arc used 1o reflect changes in the loan porttolios collectability characteristics not captured by historical loss data. As
these conditions change, the Company may need to record additional allowances in future periods.

The Company’s allowance for loan losses for cach of the reporting periods has been caleulated to reflect management’s
best estimate and judgment of the likely impact of these changes on probable loan losses. However, these estimates are
inherently uncertain, especially given that these regulatory changes have only been recently implemented by the Company. As
the ultimate impact of these regulatory actions and their effects cannot be determined with precision. actual results could difler
significantly from these estimates. Changes in those estimates resulting from the Company's additional expericnce operating
under the revised regulations within the UK will be reflected in the financial statements in future periods.

Pawn Loany

Pawn loans arc sccured by the customer’s pledged item, which is gencrally 30% 10 80% of the estimated fair value of the
pledged item. thus reducing. although not eliminating. the Company's exposurc to losses on defaulted pawn loans. The
Company's historical redemption rate on pawn loans is in excess of 80%. which means that for more than 80% of its pawn
loans. the customer repays the amount borrowed. plus inicrest and fecs. and the Company returns the pledged item to the
customer. [n the instance where the customer defaults on a pawn loan (fails to redeem). the pledged tem is cither sold at
auction or sold 10 a gold smelter or sold to a third party in the Company’s retail stores within several weeks of the customer
default. Generally, excess amounts reecived over and above the Company's recorded asset and auction-related administrative
lees are returned to the customer.

In Spain we conduct business similar 10 "pawn-broking" by applying a “buy back™ model because the legal framework in
Spain requires a customer to legally transfer the ownership and risk of loss of an object of value to us by exccuting a sale
agreement. with an option to buy back the item within a specific timeframe (gencraliy up to three months) at a pre-agreed buy
back price. The customer agrees 1o pay the higher buy back price tor the cost of storing and satckecping the item and to account
for any expected increase in the value of the item or. alicrnatively. pays the additional fee for the execution of the buy back
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option. [{ the customer does not exercise the buy back option within the agreed option periad, we may dispose of the item cither
through a sale in our retail window or smeliing and sale of the gold. Inventory is recorded at the time we buy the gold trom the
customer and sales is recorded when we sell the gold through the retail window or smelt and sell the gold 10 a gold dealer

included in prepaid expenses and other current asscts are unredeemed pawn assets consisting primarily of gold-based
merchandise of $35.6 miltion and $23.2 million at June 30, 20135 and June 30, 2016, respectively. The unredeemed pawn asscts
are valued at the fower of cost or markel.

Determination of the allowance for consumer loan and pawn loan losses requires management o exercise signiticant
Jjudgment about the timing. frequency. the estimated fair market value of the pawn assets held as cottateral, and severity of
credit losses inherent in the portfolio at the balance sheet date. The Company’s allowance for loan losses for cach of the
reporting periods has been caleulated o reflect management’s best estimate and judgment of the likely impact of the factors
discusscd above on probable loan losses. However. these estimates are inherently uncertain, especially given that the impact of
regulatory changes have only recently been implemented by the Company. As the uliimate impact of regulatory actions and
their eflects cannot be determined with precision, actual results could difler signiticandy from these estimates. Changes in
those estimates resulting from the Company’s additional experience operating under revised regulation will be reflected in the
financial statements in tuture periods.

Other receivahles
Other reccivables consist primarily of third-party reccivables for moncy transfer services and income axcs.
Property and Equipment

Property and cquipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is computed using the straight-
line method over the estimated uscful lives of the assets, which vary from three to five years. Leaschold improvements are
amortized using the straight-line method over the shorter of the lease term (including renewal options that are reasonably
assured) or the estimated useful life of the related assct. We capitalize certain costs incurred in connection with developing or
obtaining software for internal use and amortize the costs on a straight-line basis over the estimated usclut lives of cach system,
typically tive vears.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Goodwill is the excess of cost over the tair value of the net assets of the business acquired. [n accordance with FASB
ASC Topic 350, lntangibles-Goodwill and Orher ("ASC 3507) goodwill is assigned to reporting units. which the Company has
determined to be North America. UK. and Rest of World. No goodwill or imangibles has been assigned to corporate because of
the limited activities and it does not generate revenucs. Goodwill is assigned o the reporting unit that benetits irom the
synergics arising from each particular business combination. The Company determines reporting units based on a review of’
operating scgments. and to the extent present. the underlying components. Where two or more componenis within the same
operating scgment have similar economic characteristics. their results are aggregated into one reporting unit. Gaodwill and
intangibles arc evaluated for impairment annually. or between annual impairment wests. if events accur or circumstances change
that would more likely than not reduce the fair value of a reporting unit below its carrying amount. To accomplish this. the
Company is required to determine the carrying valuc of cach reporting unit by assigning the assets and liabilities, including the
existing goodwill and imangible assets, 1o thosc reporting units. The Company first assesses qualitative factors to determine
whether itis more tikely than not that the fair values of its reporting units are less than their carrying amounts as a basis for
determining whether or not 10 perfora the quantitative two-step goodwill impaicment test. The Company is then reqguired wo
determine the fair value of cach reporting unit and compare it o the carrving amount ot the reporting unit. [ the carrving
amount of a reporting unit exceeds the fair value ot the reporting unit. the Company is required 1o perform a second step to the
impairment test because this is an indication that the reporting unit goodwill may be impaired. After the second step of testing.
il the carrving amount of a reporting unit exceeds the tair value of the individual tangible and identitiable imangible assets. an
impairment toss would be recognized in an amount cqual to the excess of the carrying value of the reporting unit's goodwill
over the implied tair value of its goodwill.

The Company considers the goodwill impairment testing process to be one of the critical accounting estimates used in the
preparation of its consolidaed financial statements. The Company normally estimates the fair valuc of its reporting units by
using a discounted cash ow analysis or a market-based approach. or a combination therceof. The discounted cash low analysis
requires the Company to make various assumptions about revenues, operating margins. growth rates. and discount rates. These
assumptions are based on the Company’s budgets. business plans. cconomic projections. anticipated future cash 1lows and
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marketplace data. Assumptions are also made for perpetual growth rates for periods beyond the period covered by the
Company’s long term business plan. Since we estimate the fair value of our reporting units by using an income approach, the
fair valuc estimates are sensitive to the selection of the following inputs: the weighted-average cost ol capital rate used to
discount the projected cash flows. and the market multiples applied 10 carnings. but are especially sensitive to the projected
future cash flows of the respective reporting unit, For the 2016 annual impairment test, the Market Approach was considered
but ultimately was not relied upon or allocated any weighting because the current operations of the business do not yet reflect
the operational change that will 1ake place to more closely align the operations of the Reporting Units with those of the
guideline public companics.

The Predecessar performed its annual goodwill impairment test as of June 30, while the Successor performs its annual
goodwill impairment est as of April 1. The Company may be required to evaluate the recoverability of goodwill prior to the
required annual assessment if the Company experiences a significant disruption 1o its business. unexpected significant declines
in its operating results or forecasted operating results, divestiture or exit of'a significant component of'its business. or a
significant change (o the regulatory environment in which the Company operates.

Debit Issuancé Costs
Debt issuance costs are amortized over the remaining term of the related debt (see Note L0).

Operating Expenses

The direct costs incurred in operating the Company’s business have been classificd as operating expenses. Operating
expenses include salarics and benetits of store and regional employccs. provisions for Joan losses. rent and other occupancy
costs. purchased gold costs. depreciation of property and cquipment used to operate the Company’'s business. bank charges.
armored carricr services. returned checks. net and cash shortages. advertising, maintenance and repairs and other costs incurred
by the stores. Excluded from operating expenses are the corporate expenscs of the Company. which include salaries and
benefits of corporate employees. professional fees and travel costs, amortization of intangibles and goodwill impairment
charges. Also excluded from operating expenses are acquisition-related costs. which are recorded in Other expense. net in the
consolidated statements of’ operations.

Check Cashing Returned ltem Policy

The Company charges operating expense for losses on returned checks during the period in which such checks are
returned. Recoveries on returned checks are credited to operating expense in the period during which recovery is made. This
direct method for recording returned check losses and recoveries climinaies the need for an allowance for returned checks.

Income Taxes

The Company provides for income taxes and the relaed accounts under the asset and liability method pursuant o
auidance provided by FASB ASC Topic 740. Income Taxes ("ASC 7407). Under this method. the Company recognizes deferred
tax asscts and liabilitics for temporary diflerences between the financial reporting basis and the tax basis of the Company’'s
assets, liabilities. and expected benefits of utilizing net operating losses (*NOL™) and tax credit carry-forwards. The impact on
deferred taxes of changes in tax rates and laws, if any. are applicd to the years during which temporary differences are expected
1o be settled and are reflected in the consolidated tinancial statements in the period of enactment. Tax expense includes US and
international income taxces plus the provision for US taxes on undistributed earnings of international subsidiarics not deemed to
be indefinitely reinvesied.

Deferred 1ax asscts arc reduced by valuation allowances if. bascd on the consideration of all available evidence. itis more
likely than not that some portion of the deferred tax asset will not be realized. Significant weight is given to evidence that can be
objectively veritfied. and significant management judgment is required in determining any valuation sllowances recorded against
nct deferred 1ax assets. The Company cvaluates deferred incomc 1axes on a quarterly basis to determine if valuation allowances
are required by considering available evidence. Deferred tax assets are recognized when expected future taxable income is sufficient
10 atlow the related tax benefits o reduce taxes that would otherwise be payable. The sources of 1axable income that may be
available 10 realize the benetit of deterred tax asscis arce future reversals of existing taxable temporary diflerences. future taxable
income exclusive ofreversing tiemporary differences and credit carry-forwards. taxable income in carry-back years. and tax planning
stratcgics which are both prudent and fcasible. The current batance of the deferred ax valuation atlowance relates principally o
net operating loss carrviorwards and other deferred tax assets in the US and UK and certain other non-US jurisdictions. The
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Company believes that its estimate of future taxable income is inherently uncertain, and if its current or future operations gencrate
losses, further adjustments o the valuation allowance are possible. There is currently no assurance of such future income before
income taxces.

The accounting for uncertainty in income taxes requires a more likely than notthreshold for financial statement recognition
and measurement of tax positions taken or expected o be taken in atax return. The Company records a liability for the difference
between the (i) benefit recognized and measured for financial statement purposes and (ii) the tax position taken or expected w be
taken on the Company's tax return. To the extent that the Company’s assessment of such tax positions changes, the change in
estimate is recorded in the period in which the determination is made. The Company has clected to record any interest or penaltics
associated with uncertain tax positions as income tax expensc. Uncertain tax positions arc classified as noncurrent liabilitics unless
expected to be paid within onc ycar,

Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities

FASB ASC Topic 815, Derivative and Hedging ("ASC 8157) requires companics to provide users of financial statements
with an enhanced understanding of: () how and why an entity uses derivative instruments. (b) how derivative instruments and
related hedged items are accounted for, and (¢) how derivative instruments and related hedged items affect an entity's financial
position. financial performance. and cash flows. ASC 813 also requires qualitative disclosures about objectives and strategics
tor using derivatives. quantitative disclosures about the fair value of'and gains and losses on derivative instruments. and
disclosures abow credit-risk-related contingent feawures in derivative instruments.

As required by ASC 813. the Company records all derivatives on the consolidated balance sheets at fair value. The
accounting for changes in the fair value of derivatives depends on the intended usc of the derivative. whether the Company has
clected o designate a derivative in a hedging relationship and apply hedge accounting and whether the hedging relationship has
satisticd the criteria nccessary o apply hedge accounting. Derivatives designated and qualifying as a hedge of the exposure to
changes in the fair value of an asscet. liabiliy. or firm commitment attributable to a particular risk. such as interest rate risk. are
considered fair valuc hedges. Derivatives designated and qualifying as a hedge of the exposure 10 variability in expected future
cash flows. or other types of forecasted transactions, arc considercd cash flow hedges. Derivatives may also be designated as
hedges of the foreign currency exposure of a net investment in a foreign operation. FHedge accounting gencerally provides for the
matching of the timing of gain or loss recognition on the hedging instrument with the recognition of the changes in the fair

‘alue of the hedged assct or liability that are attributable 1o the hedged risk in a tair value hedge or the carnings etlect of the
liedged torecasted transactions in a cash ow hedge. The Company may enter into derivative contracts that are intended to
cconomically hedge certain of the Company's risks. cven though hedge accounting does not apply or we ¢lect not 1o apply
hedge accounting. Sce Nowe 12 for turther intormation regarding the Company's derivatives. including the required disclosures
noted above.

Foreign Currency Translation and Transactions

As ol'June 30. 2016. the Company had operations in the UK, Canada. Sweden, Finland, Poland. Spain and Romania. The
financial statements of these foreign businesses have been translated into U.S. dollars in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 830.
Foreign Currency Marters ("ASC 8307). All balance sheet accounts are translated at the current exchange rate at cach period
end and income statement items arce translated at the average exchange rate for the period; resulting translation adjustments are
made dircctly to a separate component of stockholders™ equity. Gains or losscs resulting from forcign currency transactions
excluding the revaluation of non-functional currency denominated debr are included in other expense (income). net. Gains or
losses resulting from the revaluation of non-functional currency denominated debt are included in unrcalized foreign exchange
gain (loss). duc 10 the fact that currency of the contractual arrangement is different than the functional currency of the operating
entity.

Stockholder's Equity

On December 14, 2011, the Company’'s Board of Directors approved a stack repurchase plan. authorizing the Company 1o
repurchase in the aggregate up 10 5.0 million shares of'its outstanding common stock. On September 20, 2012, the Company's
Board of Dircctors reconfirmed the plan through September 30. 2013. On August 21, 2013, the Company's Board of Dircctors
authorized an increasce of 5.0 million shares under the plan. Under the repurchase plan. the Company can repurchase shares of’
its outstanding common stock on a discretionary basis. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013. the Company repurchased
3.499.881 sharcs of its outstanding common stock for an aggregate purchase price of $534.4 million. During the Predecessor
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period ended June 13. 2014 the Company repurchased an additional 1.712.365 shares of its outstanding common stock for an
aggregate purchase price of $21.5 million.

In conjunction with the Merger on June 13. 2014, DFC Giobal Corp sharcholders received trom an afliliate of Lone Star
$9.50 in cash for cach sharc of DFC Global Corp.’s common stock they owned. [n addition 10 the $800.0 million 10.50%
Senior Sceured Notes due 2020 that was issued to retire Predecessor debt. Lone Star contributed $700.0 million as a capital
comribution.  During the fiscal vear ended June 30, 20135 and 2016. Lone Star contributed an additional $81.8 million and
$170.0 mitlion. respectively in capital. partially to finance the acquisition of certain assets of Cash Store in Canada discussed
below. tund loan book growth and general operating activitics.

Deferred Compensation Plan

The Company maintains a voluniary self-dirccted. non-qualified deferred compensation plan for certain exceutives and
other highly compensated empliovees. Under the plan, participants may clect to defer reccipt of a portion of their basc salary
and annual incentive bonus, Amounts deferred are invested at the direction of the employvee into various mutual fund-like
investment options. All investments are held in a rabbi trust and are recorded at fair value as trading securities and included in
other asscts in the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheets. The amount of’ compensation deferred is credited o cach
participant’s deferral account and a deferred compensation liability is recorded in accounts payable and other non-current
liabilities in the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheets. This liability equals the recorded asset and represents the Company's
obligation to the plan participants. The investments in the rabbi trust are classified as trading sccuritics and changes in their
valucs arc recorded in the Company’s Cansolidated Statements of Operations. The carrying value of the investment seeuritics
of the rabbi trust and the related deferred compensation liability totaled $8.8 million as of June 30, 2014, 1n conjunction with
the Merger on Junc 13. 2014, all the assets in the rabbi trust was liquidated and distributed to the participants. and the rust was
terminated in 20135.

Equity Method lavestment

The Company usces the cquity method of accounting for its investments in entitics in which it has significant influence;
generally, this represents an ownership interest of between 20% and 50%. As a result of the Merger. the Company’'s equity
method investment was recorded at Fair value (S11.3 million). The carrying value of the Company s equity method investment at
June 30. 2015 and 2016 was $10.1 million and S8.8 million. respectively.  The difference between the fair value and the
amount ot underlying cquity in net asscts ($2.0 mitlion and S1.1 million at Junc 30, 2013 and Junc 30. 2016, respectively) was
weated as cquity method goodwill and was not amortized.

Troubled Debt Restracturing ,
When the terms of Consumer loan are modificd. consideration must be given as 1o whether or not the modification
results in a Troubled Debt Restruciuring ("TDR™). A modification is considered to be a TDR when both a) the borrower is
experiencing financial difliculty and b) we grant a concession to the borrower. These considerations require signiticant
judgment and vary by portiolio segment. In all cases. the cumulative impacts ot ali modifications are considered at the time of
the most recent modification.

FFor term loans. various qualitative factors are utilized for assessing the financial difticulty of the borrower. These
include. but are not limited to. the borrower's default status on any of its debis. bankruptey and recent changes in financial
circumstances (loss of job. cte.). A concession has been granted when as a result of the moditication we do not expect to collect
all amounts duc. including interest accrued at the original contract rate. Types of modifications that may be considered
concessions include. but are not limited to. extensions of terms at a rate that does not constitute a market rate. a reduction. or
forgiveness of principal or interest owed.

tn addition to the modifications noted above. on occasion we may extend contractual terms of loans following a
missed pavment upon a serics of consecutive payments. A restructuring that results in only a delay in payment that is deemed
to be insignificant is not a concession and the modification is not considered 1o be a TDR.

These modifications are gencrally not considered TDRs because the extension is not considered significant. Also. on
occasion we may change the payment frequency at the borrowers request from bi-weekly to monthly or vice versa. In order 10
assess whether a restructuring that results in a delay in payment is insignificant, we consider the amount of the restructured
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payments subject to detay in conjunction with the unpaid principal balance or the collateral value of the toan. whether or not the
delay is significant with respect to the frequency ol payments under the original contract, or the loan's original expecied
duration.

Asset Retirement Obligations

in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 410, Asser Retirement and Environmental Obligations (*ASC 410"y the Company
has identified certain Asset Retirement Obligations ("ARO”) that are legal obligations associated with the retirement of long-
lived assets. Such liabilities are required to be initially recorded at estimated fair value and the related assct retirement costs are
capitalized by increasing the carrying amount of the related asscts by the same amount as the liability. Assct retirement costs
are subsequently depreciated over the usctul lives of the refated assets. Subseguent to initial recognition, the Company records
the period-to-peried changes in the ARO liability resulting from the passage of time and revisions to cither the timing or the
amount of the original ¢stimate of undiscounted cash flows. The Company de-recognizes ARQ liabilities when the related
obligations are setled. At June 30, 2015 and 2016, $1.9 million and $1.5 million, respectively, of ARO was included in Other
non-current liabilitics in the Consolidated Balances Sheets.

Restructuring Activities

The Company continugs to execute on restructuring plans in the US. Canada. and the UK. As a result, the Company
may incur severance expenses, store and facility asset writc-downs, consulting expenses and other contractual obligations. The
recognition of such costs require management to project estimate closure costs. asset performance during wind-down and the
Company’s ability 1o sublcase or cancel lease obligations.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In March 17, 2016, the FASB issucd ASU 2016-08 - "Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606). Principal
versus Agent Considerations (Reporting Revenue Gross versus Net)". This new guidance in the new revenue standard clarifics
how an entity should identify' the unit of accounting (i.c.. the specified good or service) for the principal versus agent evaluation
and how it should apply the control principle to certain types of arrangements. such as service transactions. by explaining what
a principal controls before the specitied good or service is transferred to the customer. The amendments re-frame the indicators
in the guidance 1o focus on cvidence that an entity is acting as a principal rather than as an agent. The new standard is cfTective
for annual reporting periods beginning after December 15,2017, The Company will be evaluating the potential effect that the
ASU will have on its consolidated financial statements and relaied disclosures.

In February 25. 2016. the FASB issued ASU 2016-02 - "Leases”. This is a comprehensive aew lease accounting standard.
provides revised guidance on accounting for lease arrangements by both lessors and lessees. The central requirement of the new
standard is that lessees must recognize lease related assets and liabilitics tor all leases with a term longer than 12 months. The
Company is evaluating the cffect the standard will have on the Company's consolidated financial statements and related
disclosures. and expecets a material change 1o the balance sheet due to the recognition of right-of-use asscts and lease liabilities
refated 1o the Company's porttolio ot real-cstate Icasces. The new standard is citective for the Company in fiscal year 2020, with
carly adoption permitied.

In January 2016. the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“"FASB™) issucd ASU 2016-01. Financial Instrumenis—
Overall (Subtopic 825-10): Recognition and Mcasurcment of Financial Asscts and Financial Liabilities ("ASU 2016-017),
which requires that cquity investments. except for those accounted for under the equity method or those that result in
consolidation of the investee. be measured at fair value. with subscquent changes in fair value recognized in net income.
However, an cntity may choose 1o measure cquity investments that do not have readily determinable fair values at cost minus
impairment. if any. plus or minus changes resulting from obscrvable price changes in orderly transactions for the identical or a
similar investment of the same issuer. ASU 2016-01 also impacts the presentation and disclosure requirements for financial
instruments. ASU 2016-01 is eficetive for the Company annual period beginning atier December 15, 2018. Early adoption is
permitted only for certain provisions. The Company does not expect that the adoption of ASU 2016-01 will have a manerial
cffect on its consolidated financial statcments.

On November 20, 2013, the FASB issucd ASU No. 2015-17. "Balance Sheet Classification ot Deferred Taxes” ("ASU
2013-17"). 1o simplify the presentation of deferred income taxes. ASU 2013-17 requires that deferred tax assets and liabilities
be classilicd as non-current in a classified statement of financial position. Under prior guidance. an entity was required to
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separate deferred income tax assets and liabilitics into current and non-current amounts, The current requirement that deferred
tax assets and liabilities of a tax-paving component of an entity be oilset and presented as a single amount is not aftected. For
non-public entities. the new guidance is effective for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2017, and interim periods
within annual periods beginning after December 13, 2018, with carly adoption permitted. We adopted the new guidance on a
prospective basis for the fiscal year ended Junce 30. 2016. Financial statements for prior periods were not restrospecively
adjusicd. There was no impact on our results of operations as a result of the adoption of ASU 20(5-17.

In Scptember 25. 2015, the FASB issucd ASU 201316 - "Simplifving the Accounting for Measurement-Period
Adjustments”. This new guidance eliminates the requircment that an acquirer in a business combination account for
measurement-period adjustments retrospectively. Instead. an acquirer will recognize a measurement-period adjustment during
the period in which it determinges the amount of the adjusiment. including the effect on carnings of any amounts it would have
recorded in previous periods if the accounting had been completed at the acquisition date. The guidance is effective for the
Company beginning in liscal year 2017, with carly adoption permitted. The Company is evaluating the potential impact of
adopling thé aéw guidance and does noi expect that it will have a maienal elfeci on iis consolidaied hinancial posiiion.

In April 20t 5. the FASB issucd ASU 2015-3. “Simplifiing the Presentation of Debt Issuance Costs™ to simplify the
presentation of debt issuance costs. This new guidance requires that debt issuance costs related o a recognized debt liability be
presented in the balance sheet as a diveet deduction trom the carrving amount of the associated debt liability. consistent with the
required presentation for debt discounts. The guidance is effective for annual reporting periods and interim periods within those
annual reporting periods beginning afier December 15, 2013, our fiscal year 2017. Early adoption is permitted. This new
guidance is not expected to have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements.

In April 2015, the FASRB issued ASU 2015-05. lntangibles—Goodwill and Other—Internal-Use Software (Subtopic
350-40): Customer s Accounting for Fees Paid in a Cloud Computing Arrangement ("ASU 2015-057). which defines specific
criteria that entitics must apply to determine if a cloud computing arrangement includes an in-substance software license. The
result of the assessment will direct the entity to apply cither software licensing or service contract guidance to record the relaed
fees. ASU 2015-03 is clicctive for annual periods. including interim periads within those annual periods. beginning aficr
December 15, 2015 and can be prospectively or retrospectively applied. Early adoption is permitted. The Company docs not
expeet that the adoption of ASU 2013-05 will have a material eflcct on its consolidated tinancial statcments.

In February 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2013-02. Consolidation (Topic 810): Amendments to the Consolidation Analvsis
(*ASU 2015-027). which provides guidance for reporting entitics that arc required to evaluate whether they should consolidate
cenain legal entitics. [n accordance with ASU 2013-02. all legal entitics are subject to reevaluation under the revised
consolidation model. ASU 2015-02 is ¢ffective for public business entities for annual periods. and interim periods within those
annual periods. beginning aficr December 13, 2015, Larly adoption is permitted. The Company doces not expect that the
adoption of ASU 20135-02 will have a matcrial eftect on its consolidated financial statements.

In August 2014, the FASB issucd ASU No. 2014-13, Presentation of Financial Statements - Going Concern (Subtopic
205-40): Disclosure of Uncertainties about an Entity s Ability to Continue as a Going Concern. The guidance requires an cntity
10 cvaluate whether there are conditions or events. in the aggregate. that raise substantial doubt about the entity’s ability 10
comtinue as a going concern within one year afier the date that the financial staicments arc issucd and to provide related
footnote disclosures in certain circumstances. The guidance is effective for the annual period ending atier December 13, 2016.
and for annual and interim periods thercafter. Early application is permitied. The Company docs not belicve the adoption of this
ASU will have a significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-09. Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606). The ASU
requires an entity 1o recognize the amount of revenue to which it expects to be entitled for the transfer of promisced goods or
services to customers. The ASU will replace most existing revenue recognition guidance in U.S. GAAP when it becomes
cffective. ASU 2014-09 also requires additional disclosure about the nature, amount. timing and uncertainty of revenue and
cash flows arising (rom customer contracts. including significant judgments and changes in judgments and asscts recognized
from costs incurred to obtain or fulfill a contract. The new standard is effective for annual reporting periods beginning aftier
December 13, 2016. including interim periods within that reporting period. In July 2015, the FASB aflirmed its proposal to
defer the effective date of ASU 2014-09 1o annual reporting periods beginning after December 15,2017, Early application is
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not permitted. The standard permits the use of cither the retrospective or cumulative effect transition method. The Company has
not vet selected a transition method. The Company will be evaluating the potential cffect that the ASU will have on the
consolidated financial statements and related disclosures.

3. Business Combinations and Acquisitions

During fiscal 2016 the Company did not make any significant acquisition or sell any of its businesses other than the
acquisition of a small franchisee in Eastern Canada for $0.4 million. all of which was assigned (o goodwill.

On February 6. 2015, National Moncy Mart Company ("NMM"). a wholly owned Canadian subsidiary of the Company.
complcted the acquisition of certain assets, customer receivables and customer lists from The Cash Store Financial Services Inc.
("Cash Store™). including 150 Cash Store and Instal.oans locations throughout Canada. As previously disclosed. this
wansaction was funded entirely with capital contribution from Lone Star Funds. Through Junce 30. 2015, the purchasc price
paid was $4 1.8 million. which resulted in an increase in goodwill of $30.7 million, calculated as the exccss purchasc price over
the fair value of the identifiable net asscets acquired. Approximately $23.0 million of the goodwill from this acquisition is
deductible for tax purposes. Management's valuations of the {air value of tangible asscts acquired and liabilitics assumed are
based on assumptions and cstimates of the Company’'s fair value allocations. The table below presents the final fair value
allocated 1w the assets acquired and liabilitics assumed on the acquisition date in accordance with ASC 8035 (in millions):

Consumer loans $ 11.2
Prepaid expenses and other current asscls 0.2
Computers 0.1
Accounts payable and other accrued liabilitics (0.4)
Net tangible assets acquired 1N
Goodwill 30.7
Purchasc price $ 41.8

On June 13, 2014, Sterling Mid-Holdings Limited acquired the outstanding shares of the Predecessor for a purchase price
of approximately $378.7 million. The acquisition was accounted for under the acquisition method of accounting. Lone Star's
acquisition ot the Company will provide the Company witl the capital to expand and recapitalizes the Company. Under
acquisition accounting. tangible and identifiable intangible assets acquired and liabilities assumed was recorded at their
respective estimated (ir values. Management's valuations of the fair value of tangible and intangible assets acquired and
liabilitics assumed was based on assumptions and estimates of the Company’s fair value allocations.

During the year ended June 30. 2015, the Company finalized the purchase accounting and fair value measurements for
substantially all assets and liabilitics for the acquisition by Sterling Mid-Hloldings. Limited. As a result of the final purchase
price allocations, certain of the fair value amounts previously estimated were adjusted during the measurement period. These
measurement period adjustments refated 10 updated valuation reports and appraisals received from our external valuation
specialisis. as well as revisions to internal estimates. The changes in cstimates recorded in tiscal 20135 include an increase in
property and equipment of $9.6 million: an increase in liabilitics related o an unfavorable facility lease of $3.2 million; an
increase in non-current deterred tax asset of $11.2 million: an increase in income taxes payable of $2.7 million: an increase in
the reserve for uncertain tax positions of S11.0 million; and a decrcase in deferred income taxes of $10.2 milion. These
measurement period adjustments wgether with the immaterial correction to previous period for intangible assets of $21.1
million as discussed in Note 2 above resubted in an increase o goodwill of $§22.8 million. The allocation of goodwill among
reporting units located in forcign jurisdictions during fiscal 2013 resulted in forcign currency translation adjustmenis which
increased goodwill and other comprehensive income by $11.3 million for the Successor period {rom June 14, 2014 1o Junc 30.
2014. The purchase accounting adjustments resulting from a reconciliation of the tax accounts to wx returns fifed resulied ina
decrease o the income tax provision of $13.8 million which was retrospectively adjusted 1o the consolidated statements of
operations for the Successor period ended Junc 30. 2014, Simitarly, the consolidated statements of comprehensive income for
the Successor period ended June 30, 2014, was adjusted to refleet the forcign currency translation adjustment to goodwill
described above.
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The fair value of Consumcer loans and loans in default is $161.5 million. with a gross contractuat amount of $285.8
million. The Company expects $124.3 million to be uncollectible. The fair value of Pawn loans is $149.4 million, with a gross
contractual amount of $152.1 million. The Company expects $2.7 million to be uncollectible.

Goaodwill in the amount o' $844.0 was recognized for the Merger. and is calculated as the excess of the consideration
transierred over the lair value of the net assets recognized and represents the future cconomic benefits arising from other asscts
acquired that could not be individually identified and separately recognized. Specifically. goodwill recorded as part of the
acquisition of the Predecessor includes:

. any intangiblc assets that do not qualify for scparatc recognition. such as assembled workforce: and
. the value of the going-concern clement of the Predecessor's existing business
Approximately $208.6 million of the goodwill is deductible for tax purposes.

The table below presents the estimates and value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed on the acquisition date
bascd on the best information it has received to date in accordance with ASC 805 (in millions):

Cash $ 179.0
Consumer loans 135.6
Pawn toans 149.4
Loans in default 259
Prepaid expenses and other current asscets 823
Property and equipment 128.0
Other non-current assets 43.3
Definite-lived intangible asscts acquired 84.4
Accounts payable (21.3)
Accrued expenses and other liabilities (112.4)
Income taxcs payvabie (14.4)
Fair valuc of derivatives (15.0)
Deflerred taxes 29
Debt (1,052.9)
Other non-current liabilities (67.1)
Measurement period adjustments (net) (1.7)
Net liabilitics assumed (454.0)
Goodwill 832.7
Total purchase price S 378.7

In connection with the Merger, $39.2 million in acquisition-rclated expenses were incurred. which arc reported as other
expenses. net in the consolidated statement of operations. $22.7 million of these expenses were incurred in the Predecessor
period ended Junce 13, 2014 and $16.5 million were incurred by the Successor for the period from May 2, 2014 (the date of
incorporation of Sterling Mid-Holdings, Lid.) to Junc 30, 2014.

The following acquisitions of the Predecessor have been accounted for under the acquisition method of accounting.

During fiscal 2014, the Company acquired Gemgain Limited. which operates 14 pawnbroking stores in the UK trading
under the name TGS Pawnbrokers. The aggregate purchasc price was $12.5 million. which resulted in an increase in goodwill
of $5.2 million, calculated as the excess purchasce price over the fair value of the identifiable assets acquired. Additionally. the
Company complcted two acquisitions in Spain. the first being Crirama. S.A. which operates 27 pawnbroking stores. The
aggregate purchase price was $8.2 million, which eesultted in an increase in goodwill of $6.1 million. calculated as the excess
purchasc price over the fair value of the identifiable assets acquired. The second acquisition in Spain was Belen Oro. S, L.
which operates onc pawnbroking store in Madrid. The aggregate purchase price was $3.6 million. which resulted in an increase
in goodwill of’ $3.3 million, calculated as the excess purchase price over the fair value of the identifiable assets acquired.
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Management’s valuations of the fair value of tangible and intangible assets acquired and liabilitics assumed. is based on
cstimates and assumptions.

Onc of the core stratcgics of the Company is to capitalize on its competitive streagths and enhance its leading market
positions. Onc of the key clements in the Company'’s strategy is the intention to grow its network through acquisitions. The
Company believes that acquisitions provide it with increased market penctration or in some cases the opportunity 1o enter new
platforms and geographics with de novo expansion following thercafter. The purchase price of cach acquisition is primarily
based on a multiple of historical carnings. The Company's standard business model. and that of its industry. is one that does not
rely heavily on tangible assets and. therefore, itis common to have a majority of the purchasc price allocated o goodwill. or in
some cascs, intangible assets.

4. Goodwill and Other Intangibles

The following table reflccts the roll-forward of inangiblc asscts (in millions):

Goodwill: June 30, 201§ June 30, 2016
Goodwill - beginning balance $ 8440 S 748.7
Impairment charges (18.9) —
Additional goodwill due to acquisition 30.7 0.4
Currency translation adjustment (107.1) (23.5)
Goodwill - ending balance $ 7487 $ 723.6
Amortizable intangible assets: June 30, 2015 June 30, 2016
Accumulated Accumulated
Cost Amortization Cost Amortization
Purchased technology $ 266 $ 56 S 253§ 10.4
Trade namcs 43.2 2.6 354 4.0
Various contracts 6.0 0.8 — —
Accumulated impairment charges (10.2) (1.1) — —_
Total amortizablc intangible assets $ 65.6 § 79 S 60.7 § 14.4

(1) Amounts include the impact of foreign currency translation of $(9.1) million and $(4.1) million for the Successor
period ended June 30, 2015 and year ended June 30, 2016. respectively.

The remaining useful fife of purchased technology and trade names is 2.9 vears and 17.9 years. respectively.
Goodwill is the excess of purchasc price over the fair value of the net assets of the business acquired.

Goodwill is evaluated for impairment on an annual basis or between annual tests if events occur or circumstances change
that would more likely than not reduce the fair valuc of a reporting unit below its carrying amount. To perform the impairment
testing., the Company lirst assesses qualitative factors 1o determine whether itis more likely than not that the fair values of its
reporting units are less than their carrying amounts as a basis for determining whether or not 1o perform the quantitative two-
step goodwill impairment test. The Company then estimates the fair valuc of cach reporting unit not meeting the qualitative
criterin and compares their fair values to their carrying values. It the carrving value of a reporting unit exceeds its fair value. the
Company determines the implied fair value of goodwill for that reporting unit by deducting the cstimated fair value of its asscts.
other than goodwill, from its overall fair valuc. If the implicd fair value of goodwill is less than its carrying amount. the
Company recognizes an impairment loss for the difference.

There were no changes to the Company's reporting unit structure during the year ended June 30. 2016. The Company
conducted its annual impairment test of its goodwill as of April 1. 2016 of its reporting units consisting of North America, UK.
and Rest of World. There were no impairment charges recorded as result of the Siep | impairment test. For the 2016 annual
impairment test. the Market Approach was considered but ultimately was not relied upon or allocated any weighting because
the current operations ol the business do not yet reflect the operational change that will wake place to more closely align the
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approximately $5.8 million during the three months ended December 31, 2014, which represents our best estimate of the
impairment loss based on the latest information and cash flow projections available. Additionally, we recognized an
impairment charge of $0.5 million related to DFFS Trade Namc finite-lived intangible assct. The DFS Trade Name finite-lived
intangible vatuation was calculated using a relief from royalty valuation method. The significant assumptions used in
determining the tair value of the MILES program intangible were a 23.5% discount rate. a pre-tax royvalty rate of’ 10%. a 20%
annual revenuc growth rate and a 3% long-term revenue growth rate. The fair value of all the other reporting units were
significantly above its carrving valuce at December 31,2014, The significant assumptions used in determining the fair values
of the US Retail, DFS. Canada Retail, Europe Retail UK Retail and eCommeree reporting units were discount rates of 12.3%.
18.0%. 14.5%, 20.0%. 16.0 and 23% respectively, with long-term growth rates ranging from 1% to 3%.

During the three months ended March 31, 2014, the Predecessor completed an interim test for goodwill impairment as
aresult of events and circumstances occurring during the interim period that would more likely than not reduce the fair value of
certain reporting units below their respective carrying amount. The Predecessor identified interim impairment indicators
resulting from: (i) a further decline in the Predecessor's stock price and market capitalization since the prior fiscal quarter; (ii) a
signiticant reduction in torecasted carnings and cash flows based on projections developed during the month of March 2014
and announced on April 2. 2014: and (iii) the Predecessor's agreement to be acquired by an aftiliate of Lone Star Funds dated
April 1. 2014 for §9.50 per share. which was significantly betow the book value of its stackholders' equity at March 31, 2014,
prior to the recognition of the impairment charges discussed herein. The significant reduction in carnings resulted in part from
the communications with the OFT in February and March 2014 regarding the Predecessor’s compliance with the enhanced
regulatory requirements of the FCA.

As discloscd in the Predecessor's annual consolidated financial staiements for the fiscal vear ended June 30, 2013,
goodwill was assigned to reporting units. whicl it had determined to be United States Retail, Canada Retail, United Kingdom
Retail, Europe Retail, eCommeree and DFS. No goodwill had been assigned to the corporate operations because of'its limited
activitics. Goodwill was assigned 1o the reporting units which beneflit from the syncrgies arising from cach particular business
combination. As a result of the events and circumstances noted above. the Predecessor performed its interim goodwill
impairment test by determining the carrying value of cach reporting unit. which requires the assignment of the asscts and
liabilitics. including the existing goodwill and intangiblc assets, to those reporting units. The Predecessor then estimated the lair
value of cach reporting unit and compared it 1o the carrying amount of the respective reporting unit.

The fair values of reporting units are estimated using a weighted average of a discounted future cash flows technique
(income approach) and a guideline public company market multiples technique (market approach). The most significant
assumptions used in the discounted cash flow fair value technique are the projections used to derive future cash 1tows and the
weighted average cost of capital used o discount such projections. The discounted cash flow analysis requires the Company o
make various assumptions about revenucs. operating margins, growth rates. and discount rates. These assumptions are based on
the Company's budgets. business plans, cconomic projections, regulatory guidelines, anticipated [uure cash flows and
markciplace data. Assumptions are also made for perpetual growth rates for periods beyond the period covered by our fong term
business plan.

The Predecessor completed Step | ol its interim goodwill impairment test during the three months ended March 31,
2014 and concluded that the fair values of the DFS. Europe Retail and eCommerce reporting units were less than their
respective carrving values. As a result, a preliminary Step 2 ofthe goodwill impairment test was pertormed for these reporting
units. The Predecessor recognized a preliminary goodwill impairment charge of approximately $S121.5 million during the three
months ended March 31, 2014, which represented its best estimate of the impairment loss based on the latest information and
cash flow projections available.  Additionally, it recognized an impairment charge of’ $3.8 million related 1o DFS' MILES
program indelinite-lived intangible asset. The MILES program indefinite-tived intangible valuation was calcutated using a
relicf from royalty valuation method. The significant assumptions used in determining the fair value of the MILES program
asset were a 23% discount rate, a pre-tax royalty rate ol 10%, a 22% annual revenue growth rate and a 3% long-term growth
rate. The significant assumptions used in determining the fair values of the DFS, Europe Retail and eCommerce reporting units
were discount rates of 22.0%. 22.0% and 21.5%. respectively. with a 3% long-term growth rate.

The impairment charges related to the Predecessor's DEFS reporting unit were the result of an increase in discount rates
duc o the increased risk of not meeting future projections, as well as reduced projections. The estimates of tuture cash flows
{or the DIES reporting unit were in large part dependent on increased market share as a result of more competitive financing
aliernatives 1o DFS' service member customers. Those estimates were inherently uncertain.
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During the period ended Junc 13. 2014, the Predecessor finalized the imerim estimated impairment of the DFS. Europe
Retail and ecCommerce goodwill. The otal goodwill impairment charge for the Predecessor period ended June 13, 2014 was
$128.4 million. which represented an increase of $6.9 million from the preliminary goodwill impairment charge recorded
during the fiscal third quarter ended March 31. 2014, principally duc to the finalization of the valuation of imangiblc assets and
the caleulation of deterred taxes.

Since the Company estimates the fair value of its reporting units by using a combination of an income approach and a
market approach, the fair value estimates are sensitive 1o the selection of the following inputs: the weighted-average cost of
capital rate used to discount the projected cash flows. and the market multiples applied to carnings. but are especially sensitive
to the projected future cash lows of the respective reporting unit. The Company's estimates of future cash flows in its
cCommicree reporting unit include the following significant yet inherently uncertain growth and protitability assumptions:

. Growth within the Company's on-line lending business in jurisdictions in which the Company has recently entered
and where the Company has recently experienced significant growth. such as Canada. Spain and Poland;

. Modcration of loan losscs, as its borrowers and patentially some ol its competitors adjust o the impending revised
regulations within the UK for rencwals and collections:

. Growth in market share resulting from consolidation within the industry as a number of existing competitors will
unlikely make the necessary investments to comply with the impending revised payday loan regulations within the
UK. '

. Improved margins within the Company's UK businesses principally resulting from revised underwriting criteria in

conjunction with its expectation of servicing more credit worthy customers which is expected to improve credit
quality from current levels,
. [ntroduction of a multi-payment loan (“MPL™) product in cerain jurisdictions

The Company's estimate of future cash Nows for its UK Retail reporting unit include the tollowing signiticant and
inherently uncertain growth and profitability assumptions:

. Modcration of loan losscs. as its borrowers and potentially some of its competitors adjust to the impending
revised regulations within the UK for rencwals and collections.
. Growth in market share resulting from consolidation within the industry as a number of existing competitors

will unlikely make the necessary investiments to comply with the impending revised payday loan regulations
within the UK.

. Improved margins, principally resulting trom revised underwriting criteria in conjunction with its expectation
of servicing more credit worthy customers which is expected to improve credit quality from current levels.

While these assumptions are inherently uncertain, especially given the fuidity of the proposed regulatory changes
within the UK, the Company belicves that such assumptions are reasonable and appropriate when considering all available
markct information as ot the date of the interim impairment test. as well as the Company’s past expericnces in similar
jurisdictions such as Canada and the US. which had previously implemented significant changes to regulations for single
payment loans, Furthermore. the weighted average cost of capital that has been applied to the cash flows of the respective
reporting units when caiculating the fair value of the reporting units have been adjusted to reflect the inherent risks and
uncertaintics addressed herein.

The fair valuc of the Predecessor's Europe Retail reporting unit was negatively impacted principally by the reduction
in gold prices and start up costs associaled with new store openings in Poland and Spain.  The estimates of futurce cash flows
for the Furope Retail reporting unit are in large part dependent on the projected growth and profitability of our store-bascd
operations in Spain and Poland, which were inherently uncertain.

The significant decline in the faie valuc of the Lurope Retail reporting unit resulied from (i) a significant increasc in
the weighted average cost of capital to reflect the increasing uncertainties in forecasted carnings. (ii) reductions in forecasted
carnings 1o rctlect the expectation of continued depressed gold prices. greater competition in emerging markets and less
contribution from storc openings. and (iii) reductions in market valuations.

The tailurc to achicve onc or more of the Company's anticipated business model assumptions described herein, or the
impact of the implementation of final single payment loan regulations in the UK that are difterent than those contemplated in
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4. Goodwill and Other Intangibles (continucd)

the Company's forccast could lcad 1o additional goodwill impairment of the Company's Europe Retail or ecCommerce reporting
units. and any such impairments may be material.

In the period ended June 13, 2014, the Predecessor performed an additional goodwill impairment test because
additional interim impairment indicators were identified due to the significant reduction in the Company’s forecasted carnings
tor the fiscal year ended Junc 30, 2013, While the fuir values of certain reporting units, most notably UK retail and E-
commeree, declined significantly from the interim goodwill impairment test performed in the three months ended March 31,
2014, the carrying values of these reporting units also declined significantly. principally because of the significant reduction in
outstanding consumer loans since the prior interim goedwill impairment test. No additional goodwill impairment was
recognized as a result of the Juae 13. 2014 interim goodwill impairment Lest.

Amortization of Intangible Assets

Amortization expense ol intangible assets was $8.8 million, $0.7 million $9.4 million and $7.4 million. tor the
Predecessor period ended June 13, 2014, the Successor period ended June 30, 2014, year ended June 30, 2015 and June 30,
2016. respectively.

Estimated amortization expense of intangible assets during the next five fiscal years is shown below (in millions):

Years ended June 30, Amount
2017 $ 8.7
2018 8.7
2019 8.7
2020 2.4
2021 2.1
Total S 30.3
5. Supplementary Cash Flow Information

Non-Cash Transactions

Recorded non-cash goodwill and other intangible assets impairment charges were $134.2 million for the Predecessor
period ended June 13, 2014, and $0. $28.0. and $0 million for the Successor period ended June 30. 2014, 2015 and 2016.
respectively.

6. Stock-Based Compensation Plans
Predecessor

The DFC Global Corp. 2005 Stock Incentive Plan (the 2005 Plan™) states that 2,578,043 shares of the Predecessor’s
common stock may be awarded to its employees or consultants. The awards may be issued at the discretion of the Predecessor’s
Board of Dircctors as nonqualiticd stock options, incentive stock options or restricted stock awards. The number ol shares
issucd under the 2003 Plan is subject to adjustment as specified in the 2003 Plan provisions. No options may be granted under
the 20035 Plan after January 24, 2015.

On November 13, 2007. the Predecessor’s stockholders adopted the DFC Global Corp. 2007 Equity Incentive Plan (the
2007 Plan™). The 2007 Plan provides for the grant ol stock options, stock appreciation rights, stock awards, restricted stock
unit awards and performance awards (collectively, the “Awards™) to non-cmployec members of its Board of Directors, officers,
cmployees. independemt consuliants and contractors. and any its subsidiarics. On November 11, 2010. the Predecessor's
stockholders approved an amendment to the 2007 Plan. Under the terms of the amendment. the maximum aggregate number off
shares of its common stock that could be issucd pursuant to Awards granted under the 2007 Plan is 10,500.000; provided.,
howewer, that 1.67 shares will be deducted from the number of shares available for grant under the 2007 Plan for cach share that
underlics an Award granted under the 2007 Plan on or after November 11, 2010 for restricted stock. restricted stock units.
pertormance awards or other Awards for which the tull value of such share is transferred by the Predecessor o the award
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6. Stock-Bascd Compensation Plans (continued)

recipient. The shares that could be issued under the 2007 Plan could be authorized. but unissued or reacquired shares of the
Predecessor’s common stock. No grantee could receive an Award relating to more than 750,000 shares in the aggregate per
fiscal year under the 2007 Plan.

Stock options and stock appreciation rights graned under the aforementioned plans had an exercise price equal o the
closing price ol'the Predecessor’s common stock on the date of grant.

The Predecessor accounted for stock-based compensation under the provisions of ASC Topic 718 (ASC
718). Compensation — Stock Compensation, and it had clected 1o apply the with-and-without method to assess the realization
of excess tax benefits. Compensation expensc. nee of the related tax benefit related to share-based compensation. included in the
consolidated statements of operations for the Predecessor period ended Junc 13, 2014 was $6.0 million.

The following table presents information on stock options:

Weighted
Weighted Averape Agpgrepate
Average Contractual Intrinsic
s - - - - Fxercise - - Term - Value -
Price (vears) (S in millions)
Options outstanding at June 30, 2013 3,080,697 $ 13.27
(2.634.198 sharcs cxercisable)
Granted 749,149 $ 13.41
Lxcercised (812.112) § 6.73
Forteited (3.017,734) § 15.07
Options outstanding at Junc 13. 2014 — S — 0 s —_
Exercisable at June 13, 2014 — § — 03 —

Upan the change in control related to the acquisition of the Predecessor by Lone Star, all unvested share-based awards
were immediately vested and sctiled or canceled. No share-based payment awards or plans were issucd or adopted by the
Successor.

The aggregate intrinsic value in the above table reflects the total pre-tax intrinsic valuc (the difference between the
Predecessor’s closing stock price on the last rading day of the period and the excreisc price of the options. multiplied by the
number of in-the-moncy stock options) that would have been received by the option holders had all option holders exercised
their options on June 13, 2014, the datc of the Merger. The intrinsic valuc of the Company’s stock options changes based on the
closing price of' the Predecessor’s common stock. The total intrinsic valuc of options excreised for the year ended Junc 30, 2013
and the predecessor period ended Junce 13, 2014 was $1.2 million and $2.4 million. respectively. As of Junc 13, 2014. there was
no unrccognized compensation to be recognized. Compensation expensce is recorded ratably over the requisite service period.
Cash reccived from stock options exercised tor the year ended Junce 30. 2013 and the predecessor period ended June 13, 2014,
the date of the Merger. was $1.7 million and $7.4 million, respectively.

‘The weighted average fair value of cach employee option grant was estimated on the date of grant using the Black-
Scholes option pricing modcl with the following weighted-average assumptions uscd for grants during cach of the reporting
periods:

Predecessor Successor

Period July Period June

1,2013 to 14, 2014 to
June 13. 2014 June 30, 2014
Lixpected volatility 48.8% —%
Expected life (years) 5.8 : 0.0
Risk-frce interest rate 1.95% —%
Expccted dividends None None
Weighted average fair value S 634 § —
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Restricted Stock Unit awards ("RSUs") granted under the 2005 Plan and the 2007 Plan became vested alier a designaed
period of time (“time-based™). which is generally on a quarterly basis over three years. Compensation expense was recorded
ratably over the requisite service period. Compensation expensc related to RSUs was measured based on the fair value using the
closing market price of the Predecessor’s common stock en the date of the grant. The Predecessor had 567.145 of RSUs that
became vested as of June 13. 2014, the date of the Merger. These RSUs had a weighied average price of $9.50.

Information concerning restricted stock unit awards is as follows:

Restricted Welghted
Stock Unit Average
Awards Grant

Outstanding at June 30, 2013 499,565 $ 18.69
Granicd 585,525 § 13.18
Vested (931,735) $ 15.73
Forfeited (153.355) § 15.65
Outstanding at Junc 13, 2014 — § —

As ol June 13, 2014, there was no unrecognized compensation ¢ost related to unvested restricted share-based
compensation arrangements granted under the plans. The otal fair value ot shares vested during the vears ended June 30, 2013
and the Predecessor period ended June 13, 2014, the dawe of the Merger. was $8.2 million and $14.7 million, respectively.

7. Employce Retirement Plans

Retirement benefits are provided to substantially all U.S. full-time employees who have completed 1.000 hours of service
through a defined contribution retirement pian. The Company matches 100% of employee contributions up 10 3% and 50% of’
cemployce contributions exceeding 3% up to 5%. The Company’s forcign subsidiaries ofter similar plans. the terms of which
vary based on statutory requirements.

Total contributions charged to expensc were $3.8 million, $0.2 million. $3.9 million and $3.3 million for the Predecessor
period ended June 13. 2014, and the Successor period ended June 30. 2014, 20135 and 2016. respectively.

The Predecessor’s Delerred Compensation Plan’s (the “Plan™) primary purpose is to provide tax-advantageous assct
accumutation for a select group of management and highly compensated employecs. Eligible employees may clect to defer up
10 30% of basc salary and/or 100% ot bonus carned. The Administrator, a person appointed by the Company’s Board of
Dircctors, may further limit the minimum or maximum amount deferred by any plan participants, for any reason.

There were no discretionary contributions to the Plan approved by the Board of Directors during the Predecessor period
ended June 13, 2014, the Successor period ended June 30. 2014, June 30. 2015 and June 30. 2016.

The Predecessor provided for certain post retirement benefits and additional retirement income to its Chief Exceutive
Oflicer ("CEO™) and s Exceutive Vice Peesident and Chicf Financial Ofticer (CEVP and CFO™) under the terms of their
employment agreements. Subject to service requirements. the CEO would receive a lump-sum payment which was the actuarial
cquivalent of an annual benefit of $430.000 payable in cqual monthly installments during his lifctime commencing the month
lollowing the applicable Vesting Date. as defined in his employment agreement. and $2235.000 annual survivor benetit payable
on his subsequent death to his surviving spousc for her lifctime. Subject 1o service requirements. the EVP and CFO was cntitled
10 receive an annual benefit o §200.000 payable in equal monthly installnents commencing the first month after e ccases o
be employed by the Company, subject 1o certain conditions as defined in his agreement. Furthermare, upon the CFQ’s death, his
spousc would be entitled to receive an annual benefit of $100,000 payable in equal monthly installments during her lifetime.
Upon the change in control. approximately $9.6 miltion was paid 10 satisfy all post retirement obligations.

The Company recorded net expense of $0.2 million for the Predecessor period ended June 13, 2014, respectively. There
were no recorded expense for the Successor periad ended June 30. 2014, June 30, 2015 and June 30, 2016 associated with the
aforementioned retirement plans.

As aresult of the the change in control asseciated with the acquisition of DFC Global Corp by an afliliate of Lonc Star.
the Company was rcquired to make lump-sum Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan (SERP) payments to its Chicf
Exceutive Ofticer and its Chict Financial Ofticer of approximately $9.6 million. These SERP benctits had been tunded through
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Company Owned Life Insurance (COLI) and mutaal funds held in a rabbi trust. These lump-sum paymenis were made in the
Successor period with a portion of the proceeds from the acquisition. Subsequent 1o June 30, 2014, the Company liquidated
mutual funds and paid approximately $9.0 million to satisfy the post-retirement obligations. The trust was dissolved in January
2013.

8. Financing Receivables

The Company offers a variety of short-term loan. installment and longer term installment loan products and credit
services to customers who typically cannot access other traditional sources of credit and have non-traditional loan histories.
Accordingly, the Company has implemented proprictary predictive scoring models that are designed to limit the dollar amount
ol loans it offers 1o customers who statistically would likely be unable 1o repay their loan. The Company has instituted control
mechanisms and a credit analytics function designed to manage risk in its unsecured consumer loan activities. Collection
activities are also an important aspect of the Company's operations, particularly with respect to its unsceured consumer loan
products duc to the relatively high incidence of unpaid balances beyond stated terms. The Company operates centralized
cotlection centers o coordinate a consistent approach 10 customer service and collections in cach of tts markets. The
Company's risk control mechanisms include. among others. the daily monitoring of initial return rates with respect (o payments
made on its consumer loan portfotio. Because the Company's revenue from its unsecured consumer lending activitics is
generated through a high volume of smatl-dolar financial transactions. its exposure to loss from a single customer transaction is
minimal.

The following reflects the credit quality of the Company s foans reccivable. Generally, loans are determined to be
nonperforming when they are one day past due without a payment for short term consumer loans and generally 90 days past duc
without a pavment tor longer-term installment loans depending on regional collection paticrns and product type :

r Credit Exp ¢

C
Credit Risk Profile Based on Payment Activity
(in millions)

As of June 30, 2015
Consumer Loans Pawn Loans
Single payment Loans Instaliment Loans
Gross Allowance Gross Allowance Gross Allowance
Performing S 1028 § (6.1) S 492 S (135) § 1105 $ (1.2)
Non-performing 47.2 (32.4) 17.6 (10.8) — —
$ 1500 § (385 $§ 66.8 $ 243) § 1105 § (1.2)
As of June 30, 2016
Consumer Loans Pawn Loans
Single payment Loans Installment Loans
Gross Allowance Gross Allowance Gross Allowance
Performing S 99 § @n s 1988 § 364) S 980 S (0.2)
Non-performing 52.6 (38.7) 20.4 (12.7) — —
$ 1495 § (42.8) $ 2192 § (49.1) § 98.0 § (0.2)

The following presents the aging of the Company’s past duc leans receivable as ol June 30, 2015 and June 30. 2016:
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Age Analysis of Past Due Loans Receivable
(in millions)

As of June 30, 2018

Greater >90

‘Than 90 Total Days

1-30 days 30-59 days  60-89Y days days Past Total Financing and
Past Due Past Due Past Due Due Past Due Current Recelvables  Accruin

Single paymentloans  § 106 S 68 S 74 S 224 S 472 S 1028 S 150.0 "

Instaliment loans 7.5 4.9 42 2 25.8 41.0 66.8 2.1
Pawn loans — —_ — — —_ 110.5 110.5 —
Total $ 18.1 § 117 § 116 S 316 S 730 $§ 2543 $ 3273 § 21

As of June 30, 2016

Greater
Than 90 Total > 90 Days
1-30 days 30-59 days  60-89 days days Past ‘Total Financing and
Past Due Past Due Past Due Due Past Due Current Receivables Accruing
Single paymenttoans  § 119§ 7.7 § 69 § 261 S§S 526 S 969 § 1495 S —
Installment loans 17.7 10.0 73 261§ 611 158.1 219.2 6.6
Pawn loans — — — —_ — § 980 98.0 —
Total $ 296 $ 177  § 142 § 522 S 113.7 S 3530 § 466.7 S 6.6
The following details the Company’s loans receivable that are on nonaccrual status as of June 30, 20135 and Junce 30,
2016:
Loans Reccivable on Nonaccrual Status (Jn millions) June 30, 2015 June 30, 2016
Consumer loans 64.8 73.1
Pawn loans —_ —
Towl $ 648 § 73.1

The following able presents changes in the allowance lor consumer and pawn loans credit losses (in millions) tor the
year ended June 30, 2013 and June 30, 2016:

June 30, 2015 June 30, 2016

Allowance for Consumer Loan Losses (1):

Beginning Balance $ 4.0 § 62.8
Provision for loan losses 93.4 119.7
Charge-ofls (119.5) (199.9)
Recoveries 90.1 112.7
Lffect of forcign currency translation (3.2) 3.2)

Ending Balance $ 62.8 $ 92.1

(1) Excludes $1.2 mitlion and $0.2 million of allowance reserve against the Company’'s pawn loans receivable recorded
during June 30. 2013 and June 30. 2016. respectively.

During the year ended ended June 30. 2016, the Company sold approximately $140.0 million ol non-performing
consumer loans for proceeds of approximately $13.0 million and recorded a gain on sale of $1.9 million in other revenuc.
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During the year ended June 30. 20135, the Company sold approximately $14.4 million of nonperforming consumer loans for
procceds of approximatcly $8.0 million and recorded a reduction of $2.0 million in the provision for loan losses.

9. Supplemental Balance Sheet and Income Statement Information

Property and equipment at Junc 30. 20135 and 2016 consist of (in millions):

June 30, 2015 June 30, 2016
Land $ 02 $ 0.2
l.easehold improvements 48.8 56.7
Computer soflware and equipment 57.9 69.2
Equipment and furniture 24.8 285
131.7 154.6

Less: accumulated depreciation 34.1) (63.8)
Property and equipment, net $ 97.6 90.8

Depreciation expense amounted to $34.0 million. $1.7 million. $34.0 million and $29.7 million for the predecessor period
ended June 13. 2014, the successor period ended June 30, 2014, Junc 30. 2015 and June 30. 2016 respectively. Included in
depreciation expense is $9.9 million. $0.5 million, $9.9 million and $12.9 miilion of depreciation expense related to computer
software and cquipment for the Predecessor period ended June 13, 2014 and the Successor period ended June 30. 2014, June
30. 2015 and June 30, 2016. respectively.

Accrued expenses and other liabilitics consists of the following (in millions):

June 30, 2015 June 30, 2016

Accrued legal settlements(1) S 10 $ 36
Accrued payroll and incentives 34 38.6
Accrued restructuring 65.1 24.7
Accrued for sceuritization — 0.8
Other accrued expensces and liabilitics 387 335
Total accrued expenses and other liabilities S 136.2 $ 101.2

(1) Other long-term liabilities include an additional accrual for legal sertlements of’ $20.8 million and $20.0 million at
June 30. 2015 and 2016. respectively.

The components of other expense. net are as follows (in millions):

Period from Period from
Julv 1, 2013 to June 13, 2014 to
June 13,2014 June 30, 2014
(Predecessor (Successor Year Ended June Year Ended June
Period) Period) 30, 2015 30, 2016
Transaction-related expenses (a) $ 165 § 227 § 79 $ 0.7
Acceleration of amortization of share-based
payment expense (b) 1.9 — — —
Restructuring and other related charges (c) — — 109.1 554
Gain on sale of Mercham Cash Express. Lad. (1.6) — _ —_
Debt refinancing costs 23 — — —_
Other, net 0.8 0.5 25.3 1.4
Total Other expense. net $ 299 § 232§ 1423 § 5735
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(a) Expenses related o the acquisition of DFC Global Corp by an affiliatc of Lone Star and other
acquisitions by the Company during fiscal 2015 and 2016. Thesc expenscs include advisory
and professional fees, commitment fees and other transaction relaled expenses.

(b) Expense related 10 the acceleration ot amortization of unrecognized sharc-based payments as a
result ot the acquisition of DFC Global Corp by an afifiliate of Lone Star on June 13. 2014.

(¢) Restructuring and other charges includes ecmployee severance and other costs related to the
reorganization of the Company’s business.

(d) Expenscs related to the establishment of a restitution fund resulting from DFS’ consent order
with the CFPB. ‘

The recognition of acquisition-related costs for the Predecessor include costs incurred by Sterling Mid-Holdings. Lid.
prior to the date of acquisition but following its incorporation on May 2. 2014. Sterling Mid-Holdings Limited was incorporated
10 complete the acquisition of the Predecessor by Lone Siar.

10. Debt

The Comipany had debt obligations as of June 30. 2015 and 2016 as follows (in millions):

June 30, June 30
2015 2016

ABL credit facility 830 § 120.8
DIFC Finance Corp 10.5% Senior Sccured Notes due 2020 800.0 800.0
Scandinavian credit facilities 44.7 45.1
Reccivables Securitization facility — 100.0
Note Payable-Lonc Star affiliate — 26.0
Other 9.7 8.2

Total debt 9374 1,100.1
L.ess: current portion of debt (45.2) § (63.3)

Long-term debt 3 8922 § 1.036.8

Receivables Securitization Facility

On December 29, 2015, the Company’s consumer loan originating afliliates in the US, the UK. and Canada entered
inlo a revolving. non-recourse. two-year reccivables securitization facility (the “Securitization Facility™) pursuant to
various agreements, including but not limited to:

*  uLoan and Sccurity Agreement among DFC Global Facility Borrower. LLLC (the “Borrower™), a wholly owned.
bankruptcy remote special purposc entity ("SPE") and an indircet subsidiary of Mid-Holdings. certain financial
institwtions as Lenders, and First Associates Loan Servicing, LI.C, as collateral and payving agent on behalt ol the
Lenders and other Sccured Parties (as defined therein) (the “Receivables Sccuritization Loan Agreement™ )

« aRceccivables Purchase Agreement among each of the loan originators located in the US ("US Originators™). and
DFC US Purchaser, LLC (the “US Purchaser”), a bankruptcy remote special purpose entity and a wholly-owned
indirect subsidiary of the Company for US originated loans and Reccivables Purchase Agreements between cach
of’the loan ariginators located in the UK (UK Originator™) and Canada ("Canadian Originator™) (cotlectively.
with the US Originators, the “Originators™), and DFC Irish Purchascr Designated Activity Company, a
bankruptcy remote special purpose. “orphan™ entity owned by an Irish Charitable Trust (the “lrish Purchaser™).
and together with the US Purchaser, (the “Purchasers™), for UK and Canadian originated loans (all such
agreements, collectively, the "RPAs™);

» aRevolving Loan and Sceurity Agreement among each of the Purchasers as borrowers. and the Borrower. as
lender; and
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»  Reccivables Servicing Agreements among the US Originators, Dollar Financial Group. Inc. and the US
Purchascer. and between each of the UK Originator and the Canadian Originator and the Irish Purchaser.

Pursuant to the RPAs each Originator agreed (i) to sell participation and/or beneficial interests in all of their
outstanding unsccured consumer loan reecivables as of December 28. 20135 10 their respective Purchascers and (ii) to scil
on a daily basis participation and/or beneficial interesis in all unsecured consumer loans originated by cach Originator
thereafier until the termination date of the Sccuritization Facility. The gross procceds trom the initial sale on December
29. 2015 totaled approximatcly $56 million. Additional advances of $20 million and $24 million were borrowed by the
Borrower during the three months ended March 31. 2016 and June 30. 2016. respectively. Advances under the
Sceuritization Facility are provided only against Eligible Reccivables. The advance rate under the Securitization Facility
is reset daily at a percentage cqual o 75% for Eligible Receivables for which no payment or installment is past duc, 40%
for Eligible Receivables for which all or any portion of a scheduled payment remains unpaid tor not more than 30 days
and 0% for any other consumer loan reccivables. The procceds of the Securitization Facility have been used and will
continuc to be used to repay other outstanding obligations and for other general corporate purposes. The interest rate on
the funds from the Sceuritization Facility is 15% per annum. The initial commitments of the Lenders was S$100 million.
The Securitization Facility may be increased up 1o $175 million upon satisfaction of certain conditions sct forth in the
Reccivables Sceuritization Loan Agreement, including the requirement to find lenders willing to make such additivni
commitments.

The transaction was structured so that all sales of participation and/or beneficial interests in consumer loan
receivables to the respective Purchasers are on a non-recourse basis. meaning that the Originators do not have liability to
the respective Purchasers for credit losses on the consumer loan receivables sold but may still be liable for certain
standard sccuritization undertakings. [n order o finance a portion of the loan reccivables acquisition. the Purchascrs have
borrowed and will continue to borrow funds from the Borrower, as the lender, and the Borrower, in turn, has borrowed
and will continue 0 borrow money trom the Lenders. A lender to the Securitization Facility is also a holder of the 2014
Notes. The Borrower's obligations to the Lenders arce secured by, inter alia, all the right, title, and intercst of the Borrower
in and to the foans made to the Purchasers and all of the rights and interests of the Purchasers to the participation and/or
beneficial interests in the consumer loan receivables sold to them by the Originators. Each Originator will retain legal title
to the receivables, and act as a servicer or sub-servicer on the reccivables sold by them.

The Loan and Sceurity Agreement. together with the Revolving Loan and Sceurity Agrecment and the RPAs and
reccivables servicing agreements, contain various aftirmative and negative covenants that are customary for loans of this
tvpe. including borrowing base maintenance, limitations on indebtedness, limitations on sales and dispositions and
provisions to cnsure Lender control over deposit accounts. The Sceuritization Facility also includes certain performance-
based or other wrigger events, the occurrence of which would allow the purchascrs to ccase purchasing new receivables
and wind down the Sccuritization Facility ahcad of the two-ycar anniversary. as well as certain events ot detault, the
occurrence of which would allow the lenders 1o accelerate payment of all amounts outstanding thereunder.

Thesc events include a failure 1o pay interest and other amounts when due. failurce to cure certain borrowing base
deliciencies (which may arise duc to defaults or delinguencics in the consumer loan receivables or otherwise duc w such
reccivables ceasing 1o be Eligible Reccivables). certain defaults on certain other indebtedness. certain judgments. change
of control. and insolvency events. The servicing agreements also contain customary servicer termination events which
allow the aftiliates of the Originators to be replaced as servicers of the consumer loans owned by the Purchasers. First
Associates Loan Servicing is the back-up servicer in the cvent such services are required.

On-Balance Sheet Variable huerest Entities

The consolidated VIEs. including the Borrower and the Purchasers relating 1o the Receivable Securitization Facility
included in the Consolidated Balance Sheet ot the Company represent separate entities with which the Company is
involved. The investors in the obligations of consolidated VIEs have legal recourse only 1o the asscts of the VIEs and do
not have such recourse o the Company. except for the customary representation and warranty provisions. In addition. the
cash Nlows from the assets are restricted only to pay such liabilitics. Thus. our economic exposure to loss from outstanding
third-party financing related 1o consolidated VIEs is significantly less than the carrying value of the consolidated VIE
assets. All assets of consolidated VIEs. presented below based upon the legal transfer of the underlying assets in order 10
reflect legal ownership. arc restricied for the benefit of the beneficial interest holders.
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The Originators are exposed to the inherent assumption of the risk of tuture credit losses to the extent of the
beneficial interests in the Purchasers that are held by them, which represents a form of significant continuing ¢conomic
interest. The undertying legal documents appoint the Originators as the seevicer of the beneficial interests in unsceured
consumer loans that are held by the Purchasers. Servicing functions include, but are not limited to. general collection
activity on current and noncurrent accounts, and luss mitigation etlorts including correspondence and contacting
individual borrowers as legally permitted. The Company’s servicing responsibilities are also considered as continued
involvement in the transferred unsccured consumer loans.

Cash flows from the unsccured consumer loans wransferred 1o the Purchasers represent the sole source for payment of
distributions on the beneficial interests issued by the Purchasers and for payments to the Originators that perform scrvices
tor the Purchasers, the collateral and paying agent, and for interest payments as they become due.

Nowwithstanding the Company's conclusion that the securitization transaction docs not qualify for sale accounting
under US GAAP. and that it maintains a controlling financial interest tor consolidated tinancial reporting purposcs. the
Company will maintain scparate accounting records for the purposc of substantiating the purchase date. amount of any
receivables and amount of collections attributable to the "legal sale™ of the unsecured consumer loans. monitoring
collections thereon. and tracking payments made to the collection accounts, and reconciling payments and amounts paid
by the Purchasers to the Originators for (among other things) the Deferred Purchase Price, purchase of new loans
ariginated and payable to the Originators.

The assets of consolidated variable interest entities. presented based upon the fegal transfer ot the underlying asscts in
order to reflect tegal ownership . that can be used only to settle obligations of the consolidated variable interest entitics
and the liabilities of these entitics for which creditors (or beneficial interest holders) do not have recourse w our general
credit were as follows:

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES OF CONSOLIDATED VARIABLE INTEREST ENTITIES

(in milions)

Assets June 30, 2015 June30.2016 |
Cash $ — |8 3.1
Consumer loans, Gross — 161.4
Allowance for Consumer loans — (11.2)
Consumer loans. nct — 150.2
Loans in dcfault, net — 17.2
Long term cansumer loans, net — 41.8
Total asscts $ — |8 2123
Liabilitics

Accrued expenses and other liabilitics S — |8 0.8
Sccuritized debt — 100.0
Total Liabilities $ — 1% 100.8

2014 Notes

In conncction with the Merger. a newly formed wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. DFC Finance Corp. (the
“Issucr™) issued $800.0 million of senior secured notes duce June 13. 2020 (the 2014 Notes™). The 2014 Notes are
guarantced by the Company and its existing direet or indirect wholly-owned restricted subsidiarics organized in the US.
Canada and the UK (other than the Issucr). other than immaterial subsidiarics and certain other subsidiarics. The 2014
Notes bear interest at a rate of 10.50% per year. payable on June 15 and December 15 of cach ycar. commencing on
December 15, 2014, Upon the occurrence of certain change-of-control transactions. the Issucr will be required 10 make an
ofler o repurchase the 2014 Notes at 101% of the principal amount. plus any accrued and unpaid interest to, but
excluding. the repurchase date. The Issuer may redeem some or all of the 2014 Notes at any time on or after June 13,
2017 a1 a redemption price equal to 100.0% of the principal amount of the Senior Secured Notes redeemed plus any
accrucd and unpaid interest. ifany, plus a "make-whole™ premium. On and after Junc 13, 2017, the Issuer will have the
right to redecem the 2014 Notes, in whole at any time or in part from time to time (i) at a redemption price of 105.25% of’
the principal amount thercof it the redemption occurs on or after June 13, 2017 but prior to June 13.2018: (i) ata
redemption price ol 102.625% of the principal amount thereol’if the redemption occurs on or afier June 135, 2018 but prior
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o June 13, 2019; and (iii) at a redemption price ot 100.0% of the principal amount thereol'if the redemption occurs on or
after June 15. 2019,

In addition. until Junc 15. 2017. the Issuer may. at its option. upon notice as described in the 2014 Notes. on onc or
morc occasions redeem up to 40% of the aggrepate principal amount of the 2014 Notes issucd under the 2014 Notes
Indenture at a redemption price equal to 110.300% of the aggregate principal amount thereol, ptus accrued and unpaid
interest thereon, if any, to (but excluding) the applicable Redemption Date. subject to the right of Holders of 2014 Notes
of record on the relevant record date 10 receive interest due on the relevant interest payment date. with the net cash
proceeds of one or more equity oflerings to the extent such net cash proceeds arc reccived by or contributed to Mid-
Holdings; provided that (a) at lcast 60% of the 2014 Notes issucd under the Indenture (including any Additional Notes)
remain outstanding immediately alter the occurrence of cach such redemption and (b) cach such redemption occurs within
90 days of the date-of closing of each such equity offering.

ABL Credit Fucility

On June 13. 2014 (the "Merger Closing Date™). the Company entered into a new senior sccured assct-based
revolving credit facility (as amended. the “"ABL Credit Facility™) with Jefterics Finance LLC. as administrative agent. and
a syndicate ol lenders. The ABL Credit Facility provides for a five-year $125.0 millinn revolving credit facility. with
poiential 1o further increase the maximum commitment amount 1o up to $230.0 million. subject to the conditions set forth
in the credit agreement, including the requircment 1o tind lenders willing to make such additional commitments. There is a
sublimit of $80.0 million for the issuancce af letters of credit under the ABL Credit Facitity. Availability under the ABL
Credit Facility is based on a borrowing base comprised of cash and cligible consumer receivables of the borrowers and
guarantors.

Borrowings under the ABL Credit Facility may be denominated in US dollars. British pounds. curos or Canadian
doltars (and other currciicics as may be approved by the lenders). as sclected by the borrower. As of June 30. 2016.
interest on borrowings under the ABL Credit Facility accrued at a rate equal 10 London Interbank Offered Rate ("LIBOR")
(or in the case of Canadian dollar loans. Canadian Dollar Oficred Rate ("CDOR™)) for the relevant currency of borrowing,
plus a margin of 400 basis points. or if sclected by the borrower. the applicable alternate base rate ("ABR™) (in the case of
borrowings denominated in US dollars) or the Canadian prime rate (for loans denominated in Canadian dollars) for such
currency of borrowing, plus a margin of 300 basis points.

The ABL: Credit Facility allows for borrowings by the Issuer. NMM. DFUK and DF Eurozonc (and any additional
borrowers added to the ABL Credit Facility after the Merger Closing Date. subject to the conditions thereto). Borrowings
are guaranteed by Mid-Holdings. Holdings and by cach existing direct or indirect wholly-owned restricted subsidiary of
Mid-Holdings organized in the US, Canada. the Republic ot freland and the UK (other than the [ssuer). other than
immaterial subsidiarics and certain other subsidiarics. The obligations of the borrowers and guarantors under the ABL
Credit FFacility are secured by substantially all the assets of such borrowers and guarantors. with certain exceptions. with
the coltateral agent under the ABL Credit Facitity, for the benefit ol the fenders under the ABL Credit Facility and certain
other secured partics having a first priority perfected tien on collateral consisting of current asscts, including cash and
consumer receivables, and the 2014 Notes Trustee. for the benefit of the holders ot the 2014 Notes having a first priority
perfected tien on the fixed asscts and other collateral of the borrowers and guarantors.

The credit agreement governing the ABL Credit Facility contains customary covenants. representations and
warrantics and cvents of default. including covenants which limit our ability to engage in certain transactions or activities,
representations and warrantics which we must be able to make in order 10 obtain borrowings under the facility, and
financial maintenance covenants and events of default which could result in the facility being terminated and any
outstanding debt becoming due prior o its scheduled maturity. The financial maintenance covenants under the ABL Credit
Facility arc a minimum {ixed charge coverage ratio test (which will be tested only if availability is less than 13% of the
commitments as of the last day of any fiscal quarter) and a maximum total net leverage ratio test. The Company was in
compliance with all such covenams as of June 30. 2016. Based on the Company's forecasted carnings and cash flows
{which include proceeds ot debt or cquity issuances from its parcnt companics or other third partics). the Company
expects to be in compliance with such covenams for the succeeding twelve months. The Company'’s ability to continue to
mect those covenants will depend largely on its fiscal yvear 2017 performance (including proceeds of debt or equity
issuances from its parent companics or other third partics). If the Company was to breach the covenants under the senior
sccured credit agreement. the lenders would be entitled to declare all amounts borrowed under it immediately duc and
payablc. This acceleration of debt. if not paid by the Company. would tripger defaults under. and possibly cause the
acceleration of obligations under the senior sceured notes issued or guaranteed by the Company (described above).
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As ot Junc 30. 2016, there was $120.8 million outstanding under the ABL Credit Facility, and such amount has been
classificd as long-ternm since we have no obligation 1o repay such amounts within one year from the balance sheet date. At
June 30. 2016. we had S1.4 million of letters of credit outstanding under the ABL Credit Facility. The ABL Credit Facility
matures on December 13, 2018. In connection with the Exchange Offer. we entered into an amendment to our ABL Credit
Facility o expressty. permit the additional indebiedness, including capitalized interest, incurred in respect of the 2016
Notes and to make certain other changes.

Promissory Note - Loan Star Affiliate

At June 30. 2016. an afTiliate of Lone Star had a loan to the Company totaling $26.0 million for general corporate
purposes. This loan is payable on demand and bears interest at 3% per annum. (see also “Note 20 - Subscquent Events™
below).

Scandinavian Credit Facilities

The Company had borrowings under Sefina’s existing sccured credit facilities in Sweden and Finland. consisting of
two working capital facilitics and overdraft tacilities in Sweden and Finland.

In February 2014, the Company refinanced the EUR 10.75 million (approximately $£1.9 million) Finnish revolving
credit facility extending the maturity date from February 15,2014 1 February 15, 2016. [n February 2016, the Company
extended this facility o February 15,2020, As of Junc 30, 2016. EUR 8.4 million (approximately $9.2 million) was
outstanding under this revolver facility. The facility bears an interest rate of one month Euribor plus 135 basis points
(1.36% at Junc 30. 2016) with unused fees of 100 basis points on the unused portion of the facility.

The Finaish term loan of EUR 8.0 million (approximately $8.8 million at June 30. 2016) was originatly due in
February 2016. and had an interest ratc of the nine month Euribor plus 300 basis points (2.99% at Junc 30. 2016). In
February 2016, the Company extended this loan w February 15, 2020, and remains in compliance with all covenants
undcr the facility. The Finnish loans are sccured by the assets of the Company’'s pawn lending operating subsidiary in
Finland.

ln Junc 2012, we entered into a new secured credit facility which replaced and refinanced the outstanding borrowings
under the prior Swedish facilities. The Swedish credit facility consisted of a werm loan facitity of SEK 240.0 miltion and a
revolving credit facility of SEK 123 million. In July 2014, the Company cntered into an amended and restated agreement
for the Swedish entity which increased the revolving credit tacility from SEK 1135 million to SEK 250 million and
extended the maturity date 1o June 2016.

In June 2016 the Company’s Swedish subsidiary, Sctina Svensk Pantbeldning AB. refinanced and replaced the 2012
Swedish credit facility with a new Term Loan and Revolving Credit Facility Agreement with Danske Bank A/S. Danmark,
Sverige Filial. as lender. providing for a revolving credit facility with a maximum principal amount of SEK 230.0 million.
The 2016 Swedish revolving credit tacility matures in June 2017. Borrowings under the revolving credit facility bear
interest w Stockholm Interbank Offered Rate ("STIBOR") plus a margin of 2.50% per annum. The 2016 Swedish credit
facility secured by collateral in the form of business morgage certificates. The 2016 Swedish credit facility contains
various negative covenants and tinancial covenams. We remain in compliance with all covenants under this facility.

Other Debt

Other debt consists primarily of debt assumed as part of the Suttons and Robersons acquisition in the UK in
December 2010. In December 2014, the Company negotiated an extension of this facility, which now consists ot'a £3.1
million revolving credit facility of which £4.1 million (approximatcly $5.4 million) was outstanding at Junc 30, 2016. The
revolving credit facility matures in December 2017.

lmterest Expense

[nterest expense, nct was $107.3 million, $4.3 miflion, $95.9 million and $108 million and for the Predecessor period
ended June 13, 2014, the Successor period ended June 30. 2014, for the year ended June 30, 2013 and June 30. 2016.
respectively. Included in interest expense tor the Predecessor period ended June 13, 2014, the Successor period ended
Junc 30, 2014, Junc 30, 2015 and Junc 30, 2016 is approximately, $23.1 miilion, $0.2 million, $7.1 million and $8.6
million respectively, of non-cash interest expense related 1o the amortization of accumulated charges related to the
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discontinuance of hedge accounting for the Company’s cross currency interest rate swaps, the non-cash interest expensc
associated with its Convertible Notes and the amortization of various deferred issuance costs.

As of June 30. 2016. long-term debt. maturing in cach of the years subscquent to Junc 30. 2016. is as follows (in

miltions):
June 30,
Fiscal vears ended Junc 30. 2016
2018 105.5
2019 120.8
2020 808.8
2021 ’ 1.7
Total $ 1,036.8
1. Fair Value Mcasurcments

FASB ASC 820 - Fair Value Measurement esinhlishes o fair value hierarehy that distinguishes between ubservable and
unobservable market participant assumptions. Level 1inputs utilize quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
asscts or liabititics that the Company has the ability to access. Level 2 inputs include quoted prices for similar assets and
liabilitics in active markcts and inputs other than quoted prices that arc observable for the asset or liability. Level 3 inputs arc
unobservable inputs for the assct or liability and include situations where there is little, it any. market activity for the asset or
liability. [n ccrtain cases. the inputs used to measure fair value may fall into different levels of the fair value hicrarchy. In such
cases. the level in the tair value hicrarchy is based on the lowest level input that is signiticant o the fair value measurement in
its entircty. The Company’s assessment of the significance of a particular input to the fair value in ts entirety requires judgment
and considers factors specific to the assct or liability.

Periodically. the Company uses foreign currency options and cross currency interest rate swaps 10 manage its interest rate
and foreign currency risk and a gold collar to manage its exposure w variability in gold prices. The valuation of these
instruments is determined using widely aceepied valuation techniques including discounted cash flow analysis on the expected
cash Nows of cach derivative. This analysis reflects the contractual terms of the derivatives. including the period to maturity
and uses observable iarket-based inputs. including interest rate curves. forcign exchange rates, gold forward curves and
implied volatilitics. The Company incorporates credit valuation adjustments to reflect both its own nonperformance risk and the
respective counterparty’s nonperformance risk in the fair value measurements. In adjusting the fair value of its derivative
contracts tor the effeet ol nonperformance risk, the Company has considered the impact ot netting and any applicable eredit
enhancements. such as collateral postings. thresholds. mutual puts. and guarantees. Although the Company has determined that
the majority of the inputs used to valug its derivatives fall within Level 2 ol the fair value hicrarchy. the credit valuation
adjustments associated with its derivatives utilize Level 3 inputs, such as estimatcs ol current credit spreads to evaluate the
likelihood of default by itself and its counterpartics. As of Junc 30, 2014, the Company has assessed the significance of the
impact of the credit valuation adjustments on the overall vatuation of its derivative positions and has determined that the credit
valuation adjustments arc not signiticant 1o the overall valuation of'its derivatives. As a result. the Company has determined that
its derivative valuations in their entirety arc classified in Level 2 of the fair value hicrarchy. As disclosed in Note 12,
“Derivative [nstruments and Hedging Activities” the Company terminated the cross-currency swaps which was hetd by UK
subsidiary. As of Junc 30, 2015, there were no Derivative financial insteuments required to be measured at fair value.

The tables below presents the Company's assets and liabilitics measured at fair value on a recurring basis as ol June 30,
2016, aggregated by the level in the fair value hicrarchy within which those measurements fall,

Assets and Liabilities Mcasured at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis at June 30, 2016
(in millions)

Quoted Prices in

Active Markets Sigaificant
for Identical Assets Other Significant
Balance at and Liabilitics Obscrvable Unobservable Balance at
June 30, 2018 (Level 1) Inputs (Level 2) Inputs (L.evel 3)  June 30, 2016
Liabilities
Derivative financial instruments — — 8 0.9 — 0.9
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11, Fair Value Mcasurements (continucd)

The tables below presents the Company's assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis as of June
30. 2015, aggregaied by the level in the tair value hicrarchy within which those measurements tall.

Assets and Liabilitics Measured at Fair Value on a Non-Recurring Basis at June 30, 2015
(in millions)

Quoted Prices in

Active Markels Significant
Balance at for 1dentical Assets Other Significant Total
June 30, and LiabHlitics Observable Unobservable Gains
20158 (Level 1) Inputs (Level 2) Inputs (Level 3) (Losses)
DFS trade name and other intangibles  § — 8 — § — S — § (10.2) "
DFS goodwill —_ — — — EX I
Rest of World goodwill — _ — 65.6 (16.2)

(1) Inaccordance with ASC 360-10. the DFS trade name and other intangible assct was written down 1o its {air value of
$0.0 mitlion, resulting in an impairment charge of $10.2 miflion. which is included in carnings tor the fisead year ended
June 30, 2013. Sce Note 4 for a description of the valuation techniques and the signiticant unobservable inputs used to
determine fair value.

(2) In accordance with ASC-350-20. goodwill with a carrying amount of $3.8 million and $16.2 million for DFS and Rest
of World reporting units, respectively, were written down to their implicd fair value of $0.0 million, $65.6 million,
respectively. resulting in impairment charges of §5.8 million and $16.2 million. respectively. which are included in
carnings for the fiscal year ended Junc 30. 2013. Sce Notc 4 for a description of the valuation techniques and the
signiticant unobscrvable inputs used to determine fair valuc.

There were no changes to assets and liabilitics measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis during the year ended June

30.2016.

The able below presents the Company’s financial assets and liabilities that are not measured at fair value in the
consolidated balance shecets as of Junc 30. 2015 and Junc 30, 2016:

Financial Assets and Liabilities Not Measured at Fair Value at June 30, 2015 and at June 30, 2016
(in millions)
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Financial assets:
Cash and cash cquivalents
Consumer loans, net
PPawn loans, net
Loans in default
Total financial asscts
Financial linbilitics:
ABL credit facility
10.50% Scnior Sccured Notes
Scandinavian credit facititics
Other debt
Total financial liabilitics

Financial asscts:
Cash and cash cquivalents
Consumcr loans, nct
Pawn loans. nct
L.oans in default
LLong term consumer loans
Total financial asscts
Financial liabilitics:
ABL credit facility
10.30% Senior Sccured Notes

Scandinavian credit facilities

Recceivables Sccuritization facility
Note Payable-Lone Star affiliate

Other debt
Total financial liabilitics

Estimated Fai

r Value

Quoted Prices in

Active Markets Significant
for Identical Assets Other Significant Balance at
Carrying Value and Liabilities Obhservable Unobservahle June 30,
at June 30, 2015 (Level 1) Inputs (Level 2) tnputs (Levet 3) 2008
1380 § 1380 § — § ) 138.0
1324 — — 1324 1324
117.0 _ —_ 117.0 117.0
21.6 —_ — 21.6 21.6
409.0 $ 1380 $ — § 271.0 8 409.0
83.0 § — 5 83.0 — 8 83.0
800.0 — 604.5 604.5
44.7 44.7 44.7
9.7 9.7 9.7
9374 § — 8 7419 S — § 741.9
Estimated Fair Value
Quoted Prices in
Active Markets Significant
for Identical Assets Other Significant
Carrying Value and Liabilitics Obscrvable Unnbservable

at June 30, 2016 (Level 1) Inputs (Level 2) Tnputs (Level 3) June 30, 2016
$ 1481 § 1481 § — 3 — S 148.1
206.9 — — 206.9 206.9
97.8 —_ — 97.8 97.8
279 — —_ 279 279
41.8 — 3 — 41.8 41.8
$ 5225 § 148.1 § — 3744 § 522.5
$ 1208 $ — § 120.8 — 8 120.8
800.0 —_ 487.0 — 487.0
45.1 —_ 45.1 _ 45.1
100.0 — 100.0 —_— 100.0
26.0 —_ 26.0 — 26.0
82 —_ 8.2 — 8.2

S 11001 § — 3 787.1 § — 8 787.1

Cash cquivatents are defined as short-term. highly liquid investments both readily convertibie to known amount of cash
and 50 near maturity that there is insignificant risk of changes in values because of changes in interest rates.

Consumer loans arc carricd on the consolidated balance sheet net of the alfowance for estimated loan losses. which is
calculated by applying historical loss rates combined with current collection patierns and current cconomic trends to the gross
consumcr loan balaace. The unobservable inputs used to caleulate the carrving value of consumer loans include historical loss
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it Fair Value Mcasurcments (continued)

rates and the current collection patterns and current cconomic trends. Consumer loans generally have terms ranging from 1 o
43 days and for longer term installment loans up to 3 years. The carrving value of consumer [oans approximates the fair value.

Pawn loans are short-term in nature and are secured by the customer’s personal property (“pledge™). Pawn lawns arc
sccured by the customer’s pledged item, which is generally 50% to 80% of the appraised fair value of the pledged item. thus
reducing the Company’s expuosure to losses an detaulted pawn loans. The Company’'s histarical redemption rate on pawn loans
is in excess of 80%. which means that for more than 80% of its pawn loans, the customer pays back the dollars borrowed. plus
interest and fees. and the Company returns the pledged item to the customer. [n the instance where the customer defaults on a
pawn loan (fails 10 redeem). the pledged item is either sold at auction or suld 1o a third party in the Company’'s retail stores
within several weeks of the customer default. Geaerally, excess amounts received over and above the Company's recorded asset
and auction-related administrative fees are returned o the customer, The unobservable inputs used to caleulate the carrving
value of loans in default include historical redemption rates and the current redemption patterns and current cconomic trends.

. such as gold prices. The carrving vatue of pawan loans approximates the fair value.

Loans in default consist of short-term consumer loans originated by the Company which are in default status. An
allowance for the detaulted Joans receivable is established and is included in the loan loss provision in the period that the loan is
placed in default status. The reserve is reviewed monthly and any change to the loan toss allowance as a result of historical loan
performance. current and expected collection patterns and current economic trends is included with the Company’s loan loss
provision. [f the loans remain in a detaulted status for an extended period of time. typically 90 o 180 days. an altowance for the
cntire amount of the loan is recorded and the reccivable is ultimately charged off. The unobservable inputs used 1o calculate the
carryving valuc of loans in default include historical loss rates and the current collection patterns and current economic trends.
The carrving value of loans in default approximatces the fair value.

The outstanding borrowings under the Company’s ABL credit facility and Scandinavian credit facilitics are variable
interest debt instruments and their carrying value approximates fair value.

The Company reviews wrading activity and pricing tor the corporate bond as ol the measurement date and determines if’
pricing data of sufficient frequency and volume in an active market exists in order 10 support Level | classification of the fair
value of the 10.3% Senior notes. When sufticient quoted pricing for the bond is not available. the Company obtains market
pricing and other observable market inputs tor instruments of similar characteristics from a number of industry standard data
providers to determine the fair value of the 10.5% Scnior notes at period end.

12. Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activitics
Risk Management Objective of Using Derivatives

The Company is exposed to risks arising trom both its business operations and cconomic conditions. The Company
principally manages its exposures 1o a wide varicty of business and operational risks through management of its core business
activities. The Company manages cconomic risks. including interest rate. liquidity. and credit risk primarily by managing the
amount, sources, and duration of'its debt funding and by the usc of derivative financial instruments. The primary risks managed
by using derivative instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency exchange risk and commodity price risk. Specifically, the
Company cnters into derivative financial instruments to manage exposures that arise from business activitics that result in the
receipt or payment of future known and uncertain cash amounts. the valuc of which is determined by interest rates, foreign
exchange rates or commodity pricces.

The Company s operations in Canada and Europe expose the Company to fluctuations in forcign exchange rates. The
Company’s goal is 1o reduce its exposure 10 such forcign exchange risks on its foreign currency cash flows and fair value
Nluctuations on recognized forcign currency denominated asscts, liabilitics and unrecognized tirm commitments to aceeptable
levels primarily through the usc of foreign exchange-related derivative financial instruments. From time to time. the Company
enters into derivative financial instruments to protect the value or fix the amount of certain obligations in terms of its functional
currency, the US dollar.

Cash Flow Hedges of Foreipn Exchange Risk

Operations in Europe and Canada have exposed the Company 1o changes in toreign exchange rates. From time to time.
the Company’s UK and Canadian subsidiarics purchase investment securitics denominated in a currency other than their
functional currency. The subsidiarics from time to time hedge the related toreign exchange risk typically with the usc of out of
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12. Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities (continucd)

the moncy put options because they cost less than completely averting risk using at the money put options, and the maximum
loss is limited to the purchasc price of the contracts.

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives designated and that qualify as cash flow hedges of
foreign exchange risk is recorded in other comprehensive income and subsequently reclassificd imo carnings in the period that
the hedged forecasted transaction aflects carnings. The ineflective portion of the change in fair value of the derivative, as well
as amounts excluded from the asscssmient of hedge effectiveness. is recognized directly in carnings.

Cash Flow Hedges of Multiple Risks

On April 20, 2012, the Company 's UK subsidiary entered into swap agreements to hedge currency exchange risk related o
intercompany transactions stemming from the convertible notes issucd in April 2012. The swaps were 10 mature on April 2.
2017. Between December 26. 2014 and December 29. 2014, the Company terminated the cross-currency swaps which its UK
subsidiary had cntered into in April 2012. The termination of the swaps was oficeted pursuant 10 ncgotiated bansactions with
the respective cBunter-partics 1o such swaps. The Company rcecived net proceeds in the aggregate amount of $0.4 million as a
result of the terminations and recorded a gain of $16.1 million in its consolidated statement of operations for the year ended
Junc 30. 20135, in accordance with FASB ASC 8135 - Derivatives and Hedging. As of Junc 30. 2015. there were no derivative
financial instruments required to be measured at fair valuc.

Crass Currency Swap Agreements

We use forcign curreney options and cross currency interest rate swaps 1o manage our interest rate and forcign currency
risk and a gold collar to manage our exposure o variability in gold prices. The valuation of these instruments is determined
using widely accepted valuation techniques including discounted cash flow analysis on the expected cash flows of cach
derivative. This analysis reflects the contractual terms of the derivatives. including the period to maturity and uscs observable
market-based inputs, including interest rate curves, foreign exchange rates, gold forward curves and implied volatilitics. We
incorporate credit valuation adjusiments to reflect both its own nonperformance risk and the respective counterparty’s
nonperformance risk in the fair value measurements. [n adjusting the fair value of its derivative contracts for the effect of
nonperformance risk. we have considered the impact of netting and any applicable credit enhancements, such as collateral -
postings. threshaolds, mutual puts. and guarantecs. Although we have determined that the majority of the inputs used to value
our derivatives fall within Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy. the credit valuation adjustments associated with our derivatives
utilize Level 3 inpwis, such as estimates of current credit spreads to evaluate the likelihood of default by itself and our
counterpartics. As of June 30, 2016, we have assessed the significance of the impact of the credit valuation adjustments on the
overall valuation of our derivative positions and have determined that the credit valuation adjustments are not significant to the
overall valuation ol our derivatives. As a result, we have determined that our derivative valuations in their entirety are classiticd
in Level 2 of the fair value hicrarchy.

On Scptember 16. 2013, the Company entered into two swap agreements with a Lone Star affiliate. LSFS$ HedgeCo. Lid..
to hedgce the US dollar exposure associated with interest obligation on a $570.0 mitlion intercompany note between the
Company’s Canadian operating subsidiary. NMM. and a US subsidiary. DIFC Finance. The US dollars received by DFC Finance
will be used to support US denominated interest obligations on the Company's external $800.0 miltion 10.30% senior sccured
notes due 2020. The swaps maturc on June 13, 2018.

These intercompany cross-currcncy swaps were designated as a cash flow hedge of interest payments on its US doliar
denominated debt duc by its Canadian operating subsidiary that is subject to fluctuation in torcign exchange rates.

As of Junc 30. 2016. the Company had the following outstanding derivatives:

Average
Average Receive
Number of Pay Fixed Fixed Strike
Foreign Currency Derivatives Instruments Pay Notional Receive Notional Strike Rate Rate
CAD-USD Cross Currency Swaps 2 CAD 751,602,000 USD 570.000,000 10.604% 10.50%

Non-designated Hedges of Commodity Risk
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12, Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities (continued)

In the normal course of business. the Company maimains inventories ot gold at its pawn and retail shops. From time to
time, the Company enters into derivative financial instruments 10 manage the price risk associated with forecasted gold
inventory levels, Derivatives not designated as hedges are not speculative and are used 1o manage the Company's exposure io
commodity price risk but do not meet the strict hedge accounting requirements o ASC 815 - Derivatives and Hedging.
Changes in the fair value of derivatives not designated in hedging relationships are recorded directly in carnings.

As of June 30. 2016. the Company’s subsidiary in the UK had no outstanding commodity derivatives:

The tables below present the fair vatues of the Company's derivative financial instruments on the consolidated balance
sheets as of Junc 30, 2015 and June 30, 2016 (in millions).

‘Tabular Disclosure of Fair Values of Derivative Instruments

Derivatives Liability Derivatives
Successor As of Junc 30, 2015 As of June 30, 2016
Balance Sheet Fair Balance Sheet Fair
Location Value Location Value
Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments:
Cross Currency Swaps Derivatives — Derivatives § 0.9
Commodity Options Derivatives  § — Derivatives $ —

Credit-risk-related Contingent Features

The Company has agreements with cach of its derivative counter-parties that contain a provision where if the Company
defaults on any of its indebiedness, including default where repayment of the indebtedness has not been accelerated by the
lender. then the Company could also be declared in default on its derivative obligations.

During the vear ended June 30. 2016. the Company did not have any realized gains or losses from derivatives. During the
year ended June 30, 20135, the Company recorded a gain of $16.1 million related to its cross-currency swaps. which is included
in Gain on derivatives not designated as hedges in the consolidated statement of operations.

13. Income Taxes

The Company’'s US and foreign income before income taxes for the period from July 1.2013 to June 13, 2014 (the
Predecessor period). the period from June 14, 2014 1o June 30. 2014 (Successor period) and the year ended June 30. 2015 and
June 30, 2016 (collectively the Successor periods) as indicated are set forth below (in millions). Adjustments have been made
in respect to the period from June 14. 2014 to Junc 30. 2014 amounts reported for income tax as a result of finalizing purchase
accounting during the one year measurement period.  The tax disclosures below for the Successor period ending Junce 30. 2014
reflect the impact of these adjustments. See Note 3 for additional information.

Predecessor Successor
Juiy 1, 2013 -
June 13, June 14, 2014 -
2014 June 30, 2014 June 30,2015 June 30, 2016
United States S 49.6) $ 02) § (39.3) $ a7y
Forcign (138.7) (36.1) (271.7) (225.1)
Total S (208.3) § (363 % 311.0)8 (242.2)

The details of the Company’s income tax provision or the period from July 1. 2013 10 June 13. 2014 (the Predecessor
period). the period from June 14, 2014 10 June 30. 2014 (Successor period) and the year ended June 30, 2015 and June 30.
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13. Income Taxes (continued)

2016 (collectively the Successor periods) as indicated arc sct forth below (in millions).:

Predecessor Successor
July 1,2013 - June 14, 2014 - Yeur ended Year ended
June 13, 2014 June 30, 2014 June 30, 2015 June 30, 20t6
Current: U.S. Federal $ — —.5 — 3 0.3
Foreign 3.5 — 4.0 10.2
State 0.1 — — —
Totwal M) 36 § — S 40 § 10.5
Deferred: U.S. Federal and State S 44 $ 215 § 25) $ 5.6
Forecign 0.2 — 4.5 (7.2)
Total ) 46 $ 215§ 20 § (1.6)
Towl income tax provision - S 82 § 215§ 60 S 8.9

The Junc 30, 2014 income tax provision amount of $21.5 million reflects a reduction of $15.8 million in U.S. Federal
and State tax {rom the amount originally reported due to changes as a result of finalizing purchase accounting during the one
year measurcment period.

Below is the reconciliation of income tax expense trom the US federal statutory rate to the Company’s efiective tax rate
for the period July 1. 2013 - Junc 13, 2014 (the Predecessor period). For the Successor period Junc 14. 2014 - June 30. 2014,
the year ended June 30. 20135 and the year ended June 30, 2016 the parent company Sterling Mid Holdings Lid. is incorporated
in Jersey Channel Islands where the statutory rate is zero (in millions):

Predecessor Successor
June 14,
July 1, 2013 - 2014 - Yeur ended Year ended
June 13, June 30, June 30, June 30,
2014 2014 2018 2016
Tax provision (benefit) at federal statutory rate $ (729) § — $ — S —
Add(deduct)
State tax provision 0.9 — — _
Convertible debt discount 2.8 — —_— —
Effect of forcign operations 6.9 (10.2) (57.5) (41.9)
Change in uncertain tax position 3.1 120.0 5.6 2.3
Other 3.4 — — —
Non-deductible Goodwill impairment 3.1 — —_ —
Valuation allowance 12.9 (88.3) 57.9 48.5
Tax provision at effective 1ax rate S 82 § 215 S 60 § 8.9
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The June 30. 2014 ax provision amount of $21.5 million reflects a reduction of $15.8 miltion from the amount
previously reported due to an $11.2 million additional benefit for valuation allowance and a $4.6 million decrease in uncertain
tax position as a result of finalizing purchase accounting during the one year measurement period.

The details of the Company’s deferred tax asscts and liabilitics as of June 30. 2013 and 2016 arc sct forth below (in
millions):

June 30, 2015 June 30, 2016
Deferred tax assets
Allowance for loan losses $ 124§ 1.0
Depreciation and amortization 6.7 12.8
Accrued compensation 7.0 10.2
Other accrued expenscs ' 7.8 8.8
Net operating loss and capital loss carryforwards 70.9 101.6
Foreign tax credit carry forwards 6.7 14.0
Amortization and other temporary difterences 10.7 3.0
Accrued litigation 4.9 4.8
Acquisition and restructuring charges 0.3 —
Other 23 7.3
Total deferred tax asscis 129.7 173.7
Valuation Allowance (122.7) (169.5)
Net deferred tax asset 7.0 4.2

The Company provides a tull valuation allowance against losscs in certain jurisdictions in which it operates. Management
will continue 1o evaluate the Company's ability to benelit from its net deferred tax assets and identify whether any significant
changes in circumstances or assumptions occur that could materially aftect its ability 10 benefit from its deferred tax assets.
Management expects 1o release the valuation allowance when suflicient positive evidence exists. including, but not limited 1o,
cumulative carnings in successive recent periods to overcome the negative evidence the Company has encountered from cumulative
losses during the current and prior fiscal ycars.

AtJunc 30. 20135 and 2016. the Company provided a valuation allowance against a portion of its deterred 1ax assets
where realization is not assured in the amount of $122.7 million and $169.5 million respectively. Of the $46.8 million increase,
the amount charged to tax expense was $48.5 million with $1.7 million charged to currency translation adjusiment.

The federal, state and forcign net operating loss carry forwards available w offset future 1axable income at June 30. 2016
were $179.5 million, $504.5 million and $364.8 million, respectively compared 1o $158.8 million. $447.2 million and $178.1
million respectively auJune 30. 2015. The federal net operating loss carry forwards will begin to expire in 2025. il not wtilized.
The state net operating loss carryforwards are comprised mostly of Pennsyivania and California and may be subject 1o
wtilization limitations. These NOLSs begin 1o expire at various times if not utilized. The toreign net operating loss carry forwards
will begin to expire in 2018 and in some countrics arc indefinite. The Company has foreign tax credit carryforwards of
approximately $60.8 million as of June 30. 2016. which will begin to expire in 2017 if not utilized.

. The Company is a multinational organization with operations in various foreign countries. As of June 30, 2016. the
Company has not provided deferred taxes on the excess of the amount recorded for financial reporting purposes over the tax
basis of investment in subsidiarics. including $80.8 million of undistributed carnings of certain subsidiaries. as these amounts
arc intended o be indefinitely reinvested. While management presently docs not intend 10 do so upon repatriation of the
undistributed carnings or a sale or liguidation of the subsidiary. the amount of such temporary diftercnce may be subject to both
income and withholding taxcs payable to various taxing jurisdictions. Determination of the amount of unrecognized deferred
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income tax liability and withholding 1ax on this iemporary difference is not practicable at this time becausc such liability is
dependent upon circumstances existing if and when remiuance occurs.

On November 20. 2013. the FASB issued ASU No. 2013-17, "Balance Sheet Classification of Deferred Taxes" ("ASU
20135-177). 10 simplity the presentation of deferred income taxes. ASU 2013-17 requires that deferred tax asscts and liabilitics be
classiticd as non-current in a classificd statement of tinancial position. Under prior guidance. an entity was required to separate
deferred income tax assets and liabilitics into current and non-current amounts. The current requirement that deferred tax asscts
and liabilitics of a wax-paying component of an entity be ofisct and presented as a single amount is not aflecied. For non-public
entities. the new guidance is effective for annual periods beginning after December 15. 2017, and interim periods within annual
periods beginning after December 15. 2018, with carly adoption permitied. We adopted the new guidance on a prospective basis
for the Dscal year ended June 30, 2016. Financial statements for prior periods were not restrospecively adjusted. There was no
impact on our results of operations as a resull of the adoption of ASU 20135-17.

[n July 2013. the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB™) issucd Accounting Standards Update ("ASU™) No.
2013-11 (FASU 2013-117) “Income Taxes (Topic 740): Presenation of an Unrecognized Tax Benetit When a Net Operating
L.oss Carryforward. a Simitar Tax Loss. or a Tax Credit Carryforward Exists™. ASU 2013-11 states that an unrecognized tax
benefit. or a portion of an unrecognized tax benefit, should be presented in the financial statements as a reduction to a deferred
tax assct for a net operating loss ("NOL"™) carrytorward. a similar tax loss. or a tax credit carryforward. The exception to this
wreaument is as follows: to the extent an NOL carryforward. a similar tax loss. or a ax credit carry forward is not available at the
reporting date or if the entity is not required to use and does not intend to use the deferred tax asset. then the unrecognized tax
benetit should be presented in the financial statements as a liability and should not be combined with deterred tax assets. The
Company adopted this accounting standard eficctive for the year beginning July 1, 2014 and applicd the standard prospectively
10 unrecognized tax benelits that existed as of the eftective date. The Company has reported $108.3 million of unrecognized
tax benefits as a reduction 10 non-current deferred tax assets for net operating loss and foreign tax credit carryforwards as of
June 30, 2015 and June 30, 2016.

A reconciliation of the gross unrecognized tax benefits for the Predecessor period ended June 13, 2014 and the Successor
periods ended June 30, 2014, June 30. 2015 and Junc 30. 2016 as indicated. follows (in millions):

Predecessor Successor
July 1, 2013 Jg&‘:‘;‘li" “\;3::; Year ended
-June 13, June 30, June 30, June 30,
2014 2014 2015 2016

Beginning balance s 180 $ 200 § 1506 $ 1516
Currcncy translation (0.5) 0.1 (2.8) (2.0)
Increascs — current year positions 23 — 3.8 3.1
Increases — prior vear positions 0.2 119.1 _ -—
Scutlements ' —_ — — (1.0)
Increases — related 10 measurement period adjustments _ 11.6 — —
Statute expired —_ — —_ (1.0)
Ending balance S 2000 $ 1506 § I51.6 S 1507

The June 30. 2014, gross unrecognized tax benelit of $130.6 million reflects an increase of $11.6 million from the amount
previously reported duc to an incrcasc in unrecognized tax benefits recorded as a result of finalizing purchase accounting during
the one year measurement period.

AtJune 30, 2015 and 2016, the Company had $160.2 million and $159.6 million, respectively, of liabilitics for uncertain
tax positions, including interest and penalty. related to transter pricing matters and certain restructuring transactions. Hrecognized
in the future, $42.4 million of these currently unrecognized income tax benefits would impact the income tax provision.
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The Company recognizes interest and penaltics related to uncertain tax positions in income tax expensc. As of Junc 30.
2016. the Company had approximaticly $5.3 million and $3.6 million ot accrued interest and penaltics, respectively. refated 0
uncertain tax position which represents a $0.3 million increase from the prior vear amount ot $8.6 mitlion,

The increase in the Successor period ended June 30, 2014 was $119.9 mitlion resulting from restructuring transactions
undertaken o align the legal structure of the Company with its new owner, Sterling Mid-Holdings Lid.. a Jersey Channel Islands
company. These restructuring transactions included the taxable sale ot'shares of wholly owned subsidiarics from the U.K. 10 Canada
and the U.K.. a non-taxable Canadian amalgamation. and the taxable purchase by Sterling Mid-Holdings Ltd. of direct interests
in indircct UK. subsidiarics of DFC Global Corp -

Uncertain tax positions have been classified as non-current income tax liabilitics or as a reduction 1o deferred
tax asscts pursuant to ASU 2013-11 unless they are expected to be paid within one year as of Junc 30, 2016. The Company
does not anticipate significant increases or deereases in the amount ol unrecognized tax benelits reported o occur in the next 12
months.

Tax wvears ending June 30, 2013 through 2016 remain open o examination by the Internal Revenue Service in the
United States. 1ax years ending June 30. 2014 through 2016 in the United Kingdom by HMRC. tax ycars ending Junce 30. 2006
through 2016 for Canada by the Canadian Revenue Authority ("CRA™). and 1ax years ending 2010 through 2016 in various
other jurisdictions. In some US Federal, statc and forcign jurisdictions, tax authoritics have a period longer than the normatl
statatory period to conduct an examination in cascs where net operating losses or credit carrvforwards exist. The CRA has
assessed tax for fiscal years ending June 30. 2006 through 2013, related to intercompany transfer pricing. We have not agreed
with these proposed assessments and arc contesting them through administrative processes available to us. To the extent we
have ransier pricing adjustments sustained in Canada. it is our intent to seck corotlary adjustments with the appropriaic
competent authority in the United States and the United Kingdom.

14. Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)

In accordance with ASU 2013-2- Comprehensive Income (Topic 220): Reporting of Amons Reclussified Out of
Accunudated Other Comprehensive Income the reclassification adjusiments from accumulated other comprehensive income
(loss) to net income were as follows (in millions):

Yeur Ended June 30, 2015 Ycar Ended June 30, 2016
Forelgn currency Foreign currency
transiation translation

Derivatives adjustment Derivatives adjustment
Balance at beginning of period $ — 16.6 — (138.1)
Other comprehensive income betore R
reclassitications, net $ — (154.7) (0.6) 310
Amounts reclassitied from accumulated
other comprehensive income, net $ — — — —
Balance at end of period -$ — (138.1) (0.6) (107.1)
18, Restructuring Activities

During the vear ended June 30. 2015, the Company incurred $48.6 million for store closures and other exit costs of under-
performing stores located primarily in the UK. Europe and North America. In addition $16.4 million was expensed for
cmployce related costs for personnel altected by the restructuring.

The store closing costs are included in loss on store closings on the consolidated statement of operations. The Company
expecets the majority of this amount will be paid within onc year.
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The following table summarizes activity for liabilitics related w the Company's restruciuring activities during the year
ended June 30, 2015 (in millions):

Store
closures/exit  Employee

costs related costs Total
Balancc at Junc 30, 2014 5 36 § 03 $ 3.9
Expensed during the year ended June 30. 2015 $ 569 § 227 § 79.6
Payments $ (11.3)$ 64)S (17.7)
Forcign currency translation adjustment (0.6) (0.2) (0.8)
Total S 48.6 $ 164 S 65.0

As of June30. 2016, the Company's liability for store closurcs and employec related costs was $24.5 million and $0.2
million. respectively. Total restructuring expense o $79.6 million and $26.4 million for the year ended lung 30, 2015 and 2016
respectively @ included in Othér Expenses. net.

The following table summarizes activity for liabilitics related to the Company’'s restructuring activitics during the year
ended June 30, 2016 (in millions):

Store closures/ Employee-
exit casts related costs Total
Balance at Junc 30, 2015 S 486 S 16.4 © 65.0
Expensed during the vear ended Junc 30, 2016 21.0 54 26.4
Payments (40.5) (21.5) (62.0)
Foreign currency translation adjustment (4.6) (0.1) (4.7)
Balance at June 30, 2016 $ 245 § 0.2 24.7

The following table summarizes activity for liabilities related to asset retirement obligations for the year ended Junc 30.
2015 (in millions):

Forelgn
Balance at Settlement Currency Balance ot
Beginning of on store Accretion Translation Fnd of
Perlod closures Expense Adjustments Period
Assct retirement obligations: S 7.7 (4.8) 0.4) 0.6) § 1.9

Asset retirement obligations for the year ended Junc 30. 2016 were as follows (in millions):

Foreign
Balance at Settlement Currency Balance at
Beginning of on store Accretion Translation Fud of
Period closures Expense Adjustments Period
Asset retirement obligations: $ 1.9 (0.4) 0.2 0.2) § 1.5

16. Commitments

The Company has various noncancelable Icascs for office and retail space and certain equipment with terms primarily
ranging from one to five vears, most of which contain standard optional renewal clauses. ‘Total rent expensc under operating
Icascs amounted to $66.9 million. $3.5 miilion. $64.8 miffion and $45.0 for the Predecessor period July 1. 2013 to Junc (3.
2014 and the Successor period from June 14, 2014 (o0 Junc 30. 2014, Junc 30. 2015 and June 30. 2016. respectively.
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At Junc 30. 2016. future minimum lease payments for operating lcases are as (ollows (in millions):

Year Amount

2017 40.0
2018 333
2019 25.5
2020 18.9
2021 13.0
Thereafter 14.9
Total $ 145.6

At June 30, 2016, the Company had unuscd commitments to extend credit for loans of approximately $9.0 miflion. Such
commitments arise from agreements with customers for unused lines of credit on certain toan products.,

As of June 30. 2016, our liability for uncertain tax positions amounted to $139.6 million. including interest and penalties.
Duc to the nature and timing of the ultimate outcome of these uncertain tax positions. we cannot make a reliable estimate of the
amount and period of related fuwure payments. Therelore, our liability has been excluded from the above contraciual obligations
table.

17. Contingent Liabilities

The Company is subject o various asserted and unasserted claims during the course ol business. Due 1o the uncertainty
surrounding the litigation process, except for those mauers for which an accerual is described betow. the Company is unable 10
reasonably estimatc the range of loss. if any. in connection with the asscried and unasserted legal actions against it. Although
the outcome of many of these matters is currently not determinable. the Company belicves that it has meritorious defenses and
that the ultimate cost 1 resolve these matters will not have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated tinancial position,
results of operations or cash flows. In addition o the legal proceedings discussed betow, the Company is involved in routine
litigation and administrative proceedings arising in the ordinary course of business.

The Company asscsses the materiality of litigation by reviewing a range ol qualitative and quantitative factors. ‘These
factors include the size of the potential claims. the merits of the Company’s defenses and the likelihood of plaintifts® success on
the merits, the regulatory environment that could impact such claims and the potential impact of the litigation on our business.
The Company cvaluates the likelihood of an untavorable outcome of the legal or regulatory praceedings o which itis a party in
accordance with ASC Topic 450. Contingencies. An accrual for a loss contingency is recorded ifit is probable that a tiability
has been incurred at the date of the financial statements and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. When the
liability with respect to a mauer is reasonably possible. the Company estimates the possible loss or range of loss or determines
why such an estimate cannot be made. This assessment is subjective based on the status of the legal proceedings and is based on
consultation with in-house and external legal counsel. The actual outcomes of these proceedings may differ from the
Company’s asscssments.

Purported Canadian Class Actions

In 2003 and 20006, class actions were brought against NMM and Dollar Financial Group, Inc. in the Court of Queen’s
Beneh of Alberta. Canada on behalf of a class of consumers who obtained short term loans from NMM in Alberta. alleging.
among other things, that the charge to borrowers in connection with such loans was usurious under Canadian federal law (the
“Alberta Litigation™). The actions scek restitution and damages. including punitive damages. In April 2010. the plaintifls in
both actions indicated that they would proceed with their claims. Demands for arbitration were served on the plaintitl’in cach of’
the actions. and NMM filed motions to enforce the arbitration clause and stay the actions. which werce later denied by the court.
NMM appcated those decisions and, in July 2013. the Court of Appeal dismissed NMM's appeal. 1n September 2013, NMM
filed an application for leave 1o appeal 1o the Supreme Court of Canada, but on January 30. 2014. the Supreme Court denied the
application. Motions for class certification of these actions werce heard on September 18, 2014: onc class was certified as a
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representative action and the other was certified as a class action. The parties arc engaged in discovery and the court set a trial
date tor September 2017, We intend to defend these actions vigorously.

In 2004, an action was filed against NMM in Manitoba on behalf of a purported class of consumers who obtained short
term loans from NMM. In carly February 2012, a scparate action was filed against NMM and Doliar Financial Group, Inc. in
Manitoba on behalf of a purported class of consumers which substantially overlaps with the purported class in the 2004 action.
In April 2013, NMM filed a motion to enforce the arbitration/mediation terms in the sccond action. In July 2013. the Count
denied the motion to compel arbitration. In October 2013, NMM filed an appeal with the appellate court. In Junc 2014, the
court dismissed NMM s appcal from the dismissal of the siay application. NMM filed an application for lcave to appeal the
appetlate court’s dismissal 1o the Supreme Court of Canada. which dismissed the appeal application in November 2014, In April
2016. the plaintifls in these actions tiled a motion for class centification. In response. NMM filed motions 1o enforce class
action waivers signed by the plaintifls. Hearings on all of these motions are expecied to occur in October and November of
2016. The allegations in cach ol these actions are substantially similar to those in the Albena Litigation. We intend to detend
these actions vigorously.

Az of Junc 30. 2016, wi uggregine of upproXimately CAD $26 million is included in the Company s accrucd liabilities
relatng to the purported Canadian class action proceedings pending in Alberta and Manitoba. Previous scitiements in our
Canadian class action proccedings consisted of'a cash component and vouchers to the class members for future services.
Although we believe that we have meritorious defenses 10°the claims in the purported class proceedings in Alberta and
Manitoba described above and intend vigorously to detend against such remaining pending claims. the ultimate cost of
resolution of such claims may exceed the amount accrued at June 30, 2016 and additional accruals may be required in the
future.

Purported US Class Actions

In November 2013, the Predecessor was served with a purported sharcholder class action lawsuit filed against it and
certain of its senior exccutives in the U.S. District Court for the Eastern District of Pennsylvania (the “*Couwrt™). The complaint.
which purports to be brought as a class action on behalt of purchasers of the Predecessor’s common stock between January 28.
2011 and August 22. 2013, allcges violations of federal sccurities laws regarding disclosures made by the Predecessor with
respect Lo its compliance with UK regulatory requirements. UK lending practices. and its carnings guidance during the relevant
period. On April 9. 2014, the Court named as lead plaintilY in this purported class action a group consisting ot the West Palm
Beach Police Pension Fund. the Arkansas Teachers Retirement System. the Macomb County Employees Retirement System and
the Laborers™ District Council and Contractors” Pension Fund of Ohio.

In March 2014, the Predecessor was served with a scparate purported class action lawsuit filed against it. certain of its
senior executives and directors, and the two underwriters who served as joint book-running managers for our April 7. 2011
common stock offering (the 2011 Oflering™) in the Court. The named plaintifi'is the Arkansas Tcachers Retirement System,
and its complaint. which purports to be brought as a class action on behalf of purchasers of our common stock in the 2011
Offering. alleges violations of federal securities laws regarding disclosures made by the Predecessor with respect 1o its
prospectus and registration statement relating w the 2011 Offering (the “Offering Materials™). and the Predecessor’s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q ftor the fiscal quarter ended December 31,2010 and its Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ended Junc 30. 2010. which were incorporaled by reference into the Offering Materials. The complaint seeks unspecified
monetary and other reliel. The Company believes that the complaint is without merit and intends to defend against it
vigorously.

Furthermore. on April 21, 2014, the Court consolidated the above referenced West Palm Beach Police Pension Fund and
Arkansas Teachers Retirement System actions. On or about July 21, 2014, the plaintitls filed their amended consolidated
complaint. The consolidated complaint purports Lo be brought as a class action on behalf of purchasers of the Predecessor's
common stock and to expand the class period from January 28, 2011 o February 3. 2014, The consolidated complaint sceks
unspecified monetary damages and other reliel. Defendants fited a motion o dismiss the consolidated complaint. which the
Court denicd in June 2013, Plaintifls filed their motion for class certification in carly October 2015 and Detendants filed its
opposition (o class certitication in mid-December 20135, In December 2015, West Palm Beach Police Pension Fund withdrew as
alead plainufl in the consolidated action. The partics are now engaged in discovery. The consolidated complaint sccks
unspecificd monctary and other relict’ The Company believes that the consolidated complaint is withowt merit and intends to
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defend against it vigorously. We belicve it is too carly o determine the likelihood of a favorablie or unfavorable outcome or
ultimate liability, ifaay. that may result from this case.

Litigation Relating to the June 2014 Merger

Six purparted class action lawsuits challenging the Merger were filed in the Delaware Chancery Court (the “Court™)
between April 8 and May 2. 2014: Michael Marcus v. DFC Global Corp.. ctal.. Civil Action No. 9520-VCP: Maxinc Phillips v.
DFC Global Corp.. et al.. Civil Action No. 9558-VCP: Mark Silverstein v. DFC Global Corp.. et al.. Civil Action No. 9564-
VCP: Noh-Joon Choo v. DFC Global Corp.. et al., Civil Action No. 9572-VCP; Cordcll Jefirey and Sheila A. Jeffrey v. DFC
Cilobal Corp.. ctal.. Civil Action No. 9590-VCP: and KC Gamma Opportunity Fund. LP v. DFC Global Corp.. ct al.. Civil
Action No. Y601-VCP.

The initial complaints in the six fawsuits were substantively identical. naming the same defendants and sceking the same
relict based on the same asserted claims. The complaints allege that the consideration sought for the Merger was unfair. that the
merger was the result of an unfair process and that the terms ot the merger were inadequate. The detendants included the
Predecessor and its board of dircctors at the time. as defendants along with the various entities acting as purchaser in the
Merger.

The first count in cach ot the complaints was brought against the Predecessor’s directors. alleging that they breached their
fiduciary dutics to stockholders by approving the merger. The second count in cach of the complaints was brought against the
Predecessor and the various cntitics acting as purchaser alleging that those entitics aided and abetted the individual defendamts®
alleged breaches ol tiduciary duty. Each of the complaims secks class-action certification with the respective named plaintifY as
class representative. The complaints sought preliminary and permanent injunctions barring the merger and. if the merger were
t be completed. rescission of the merger or damages. L2ach of the complaints also sought an award of attorneys” fees and
CXPCNSCs.

On May 13. 2014, the Court consolidated the six actions and appointed plaintitTs Michacl Marcus and KC Gamma
Opportunity Fund. LP as lead plaintifls and their respective counscl as lead counsel. Also. on May 13. 2014, the Court granted
the lead plaintifls” motion for expedited proceedings. On May 28. 2014. the Icad plaintifls withdrew their motion 10
preliminarily enjoin the special mecting for stockholders 1o vote on the merger pending the disclosure of additional information.
The partics ultimately scutled the matter in March 2015, and the Court approved the partics” scttlement of this matuer for an
immaterial amount. Thereafier, the Court issucd an order closing this casc and relinguishing jurisdiction.

Between June and October 2014, five purported beneficial owners ot the Predecessor's common stock. Oasis Investment
[T Master Fund. Lid.. Muirlicld Value Partners L.P.. Candlewood Special Sitnation Master Fund. Ltd.. CWD OC 522 Master
Fund. Ltd.. and Randoph Watkins Slitka. filed with the Court petitions for appraisal ol 4.604.683 sharcs of the Predecessor.
The appraisal petitions sought. among other things. a determination of the fair value of the appraisal petitioners® shares at the
time ol the Merger; an order that the Predecessor pay that value to the appraisal petitioners. wgether with interest at the
statwtory rate: and an award of costs. attorneys” fees. and other expenses. In May 2015, we agreed 10 pay Petitioners a portion
of the merger consideration in the amount of $7.30 per share. plus accrued interest. for a total of approximately $36.4 million.
‘Fhe wrial in this matter occurred in October 201 5. Subsequently. the Court directed the parties to submit turther brietings and
scheduled post-trial argument which occurred in March 2016. The Court has discretion to award the share price for the Merger.
or award a greater or lesser amount per share to these sharcholders. DFC believes these alleged appraisal claims are without
merit and intends to vigorously defend this mauer. (sce atso “Note 20 - Subsequent Events™ below).

Other Matters

Regulatory Review by FCA

In February 2013, Insiant Cash Loans Limited ("ICL") (our licensed UK HCSTC subsidiary) was required to appoint a
“skilled person™ under the FSMA 1o review 1CL's customer fending and collection practices. [n February 2013, KPMG. the
appointed skilled person. concluded that those practices were deficient with respect 10 loans made to certain customers since
January 2013, ICL initiated a customer redress plan for this group. which includes an assessment of amounts that may be due to
such customers. In implementing the redress plan. [CL continues to work with KPMG during the payment of financial redress
to customers. which was substantially complete by Junc 2016. ICL commenced sending redress notices 1o these customers in
November 20135 and has since been providing tinancial and other redress o these customers on an ongoing basis. [CL. had fully
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reserved for its customer redress plan in previous year and as of June 30. 2016, the remaining balance of this reserve was $1.0
million.

UK VAT Dispute

Our UK afliliate, Dollar Financial UK Limited, lodged an appeal in 2015 and submitted supporting evidentiary documents
to a Tax Tribunal on February 3. 2016. trom a HMRC VAT dispute for services supplicd 1o our UK lending companies by a
marketing firm and by ovcerseas lcad-generators. The VAT amount subject to the appeal is approximately £3.2 million. In
August 2016, we reccived a favorable ruling from the First-Tier Tribunal. HMRC have untit October 14, 2016. to appeai the
decision ta the Upper Tribunal.

Canada Transfer Pricing and Gouds and Services Tax

In Canada. we are in disputes with the Canadian Revenue Ageney (“CRA™) regarding our proposed iransfer pricing
adjustments and arc contesting the CRA through the administrative and judicial process. The CRA has assessed taxes for fiscal
years endlng Jume 30, 2006 through 2013 relaiéd to intercompany transfer pricing and for fiscal years ending June 30, 2009
through 2013 related 10 goods and service tax (“GST™). We believe our existing reserves for these Canadian audits and
assessments are adequate; however, we cannot be cenain of the outcome of these tax matters, I any such matters were settled
in a maancr adversc 1o us, or we were compelled to pay amounts in excess of our existing reserves, our results ol operations or
financial condition could be adversely aflected.

Legal Actions in Spain

Our Spanish aftiliawe, Subcr Efectivo, filed an appeal to the Spanish Tax Authorities’ assessment ot €1.1 million for
transier tax assessments for tax years 2010 to 2013. Super Efectivo’s owside wax advisors believe that there is a reasonable basis
to challenge the assessments and succeed on the appeal. and therefore Super Eftctivo has posted the required sceeurity under
Spanish law. This tax appeal proccss is expected to take between two and nine years 1o complcte.

In August 2015, the Catalan Consumer Agency (“Agency™) in Spain initiated a proceeding against OK Moncey Spain in
connection with our single payment loan product. The Agency has alleged that the amount of commission charged by OK
Money in respect of initial disbursement (30% o principal) violates applicable usury laws. The Agency imposed a fine off
€47.000 on OK Money Spain. OK Money Spain is currently appealing this decision. We believe that it is too carly in the
proceedings to evaluate the probability of a favorable or unfavorable outcome. or to estimate the potential loss. if any.

Ewploviment Related Litigation

On May 12, 2014, the case Rodas v. Monetary Management of California. Case No. 2:14-cv-01389-TLN-AC. was filed
against our Calitornia operating subsidiary. by former employee Rodas and a purported class of similarly situated current and
former caployees atleging seven employment claims. including failure 1o pay all overtime wages. to provide rest periods or
campensation in licu thercof. to provide meal periods or compensation in licu thereof. w provide itemized employee wage
statements, to pay wages due at separation ol employment in a timely manner, to pay accrued but unused paid time ofl"and

acation, as well as unlaw{ul and unfair business practices under California law. We retained the San Francisco. California
bascd taw firm of Bariko Zankel. On April 13, 2013, the parties entered into a Memorandum of Understanding outlining
settlement terms. A motion for approval of the seitlement terms. including a payment ol' §9935,000 to the purported class and
plaintifls’ class counscl (inclusive of all administration costs). was filed in carly Junc 2013 and approved by the Court’s
decision on February 23, 2016, In April 2016. the Court gave final approval to the settlement terms.

18. Geographic Information

Information concerning geographic arcas is as follows (in millions):
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Predecessor Successor Successor fiscal  Successor fiscal

period ended period ended year ended year ended
June 13, June 30, June 30, June 30,
2014 2014 2015 2016

Revenue )

United Kingdom S 4316 S [ 0 B Y 1864 § 151.0
North America 4223 20.2 421.3 420.9
Rest of the World 96.0 4.9 106.1 1.8
Total S 9499 § 362 § 7138 § 683.7
Property and equipment, net

United Kingdom $ 723§ 41,1 $ 28.1
North America 495 50.0 57.7
Rest of the World 15.7 6.5 5.0
Total S 13725 § 97.6 S 90.8

19. Related Party Transactions

Asset Advisory Agreement

In connection with the Merger, on May 7. 2014, L.SF8 Sterling Merger Sub. 1L1.C and Hudson Americas L1.C
(“Manager”). an afliliatc of Lonc Star. entered into an Asset Advisory Agreement (the “Asset Advisory Agreement”). which
was joined by another afliliate of Lone Star. Pursuant to the Assct Advisory Agreement, the Manager provides certain assct
management services with respect to us. our subsidiaries and our and their respective assets or acquired equity interests
(collectively. the "Assets™). including: (i) communicating and coordinating with any personnel or other service providers hired
by us ar our subsidiarics with respect the Assets; (i) assisting and advising us in the pursuit of our long term plan developed
and adopted by us with respect 1o the Asscts: (iii) subject 1o the availability of sufficient funds. implementing the long term plan
and managing the Assets in accordance with the long term plan: and (iv) taking any actions as it deems necessary or appropriate
10 protect our interests with respect to the Assets in response to certain emergency situations. Pursuant to the Asset Advisory
Agreement. we will pay the Manager an amount cqual to 110% of the hourly billing rates of the individuals performing
management services. and all expenscs incurred by Manager on behalt of us will be paid by us. The Asset Advisory Agreement
is terminable by us, the Manager or Lone Star’s afliliate party to the agreement upon 30 days’ notice from one party to the
others. As of June 30, 2016. the Company had accrued approximately $3.0 million for expenses paid on our behalf by the
Manager.

Lone Star Capital Contributions

[n conjunction with the Merger on June 13, 2014, DIFC Global Corp. shareholders received from an affiliate of Lone Swuar
$9.50 in cash tor cach share of DFC Glabal Corp.’s common stock they owned. In addition o the 2014 Notes that were issued
to retire Predecessor debt. Lone Star contributed $700.0 million as a capital contribution. Lone Star contributed $81.8 million in
capital during the fiscal vear ended June 30. 2015, partially 10 finance the acquisition of certain assets of Cash Store in Canada
(sce “Note 3 - Business Combination and Acquisitions™ above), 1o fund loan growth and for general corporate purposes.

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016, Lone Star contributed an additional $170.0 million in capital to fund loan growth
and for general carporate purposes. (see also “Note 20 - Subsequent Events” below)

DFC Finance Corp. Senior Secured Notes

An affiliate of the Company's controlling sharcholders (Lone Star Fund VI (U.S.). L.I% and Lone Star Fund VIl
(Bermuda) L.P.). that regularly invests in corporate bonds and other debt obligations as part of its ordinary course of busincss.
purchascd (rom third partics in the open market 2014 Notes issued by DFC Finance Corp. in the amount of $10 million and
S185.7 million during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013 and June 30. 201 6. respectively. The affiliate atall times held
material amounts ot the 2014 Notes. (see also “Note 20 - Subsequent Events™ below)
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Cross Currency Swap Agreements

On September 16, 2015, the Company entered into two swap agreements with a Lone Star affiliate. L.SF8 HedgeCo. Ltd..
to hedge the US dollar exposure associated with the interest obligation on a $5370.0 million intecrcompany note between NMM
and DFC Finance. The swaps maturc on June 135, 2018. (sce “Note 12 - Derivative Instruments and Hedging™ above)

Promissory Notes - Lone Star Affiliate

As of Junc 30, 2016, there were two outstanding loans totaling $26.0 million made by an affiliaie of Lone Star 1o Mid-
Holdings for general corporate purposes. These loans are payable on demand and bear interest at a rate of 3% per annum. (See
“Note 10 - Debt™ above and also “Note 20 - Subsequent Events™ below)

20. Subsequent Events

On July 6. 2016. the government of New Brunswick issued proposed regulations governing the consumer lending industry.

. .The proposed regulations provide for-a maximum-rate -forpayday-lending 6t*$1:5*{oi ¢aéli$100 Borrawed dnd cap the™

proportion of a borrower’s net pay. which is used to determine the maximum loan amount. at 30%. These rates and caps are
lower than we currently feature in New Brunswick. [ adopted as proposcd. this legislation will likely severely impact results ol
our single payment loan product in that Province. There can be no assurance that these regulations or faws. or any amendments
to these proposed regulations or faws. or our failure to comply with federal usury laws in New Brunswick. or any other
provincial or federal laws or regulations. will not have a detrimental effect on our unseeured short term lending business in
Canada in the future. We have been. and could in the future be, the subject of litigation. proceedings. class action lawsuits or
enforcement relating to our payday fending activities in New Brunswick.

On July 8. 2016. the Court issucd its ruling regarding the litigation of the appraisal price of shares of the Predecessor
rclated o the Merger. (Sec Note 17 - Contingent Liabilitics). The Court ruled that the petitioners arc entitled to the fair value
on the Merger Closing Date o' $10.21 per share, $2.71 of which remains unpaid. and to interest aceruing on the unpaid amount
from June 13, 2014, at the rate of 3% over the Fedceral Reserve discount rate from time to time. compounded quarterly.
However. the Company’s counsel determined that there was an crror in the Court’s determination of this valuation and
requested reargument and reduction of the award 1o $8.62/share. The petitioners also requested leave and tiled a motion for
rcargument aficr the Court’s deadiine had expired requesting a valuation in excess of the original $10.21/sharc awarded by the
Court. The Court granted both partics’ motions for reargument and adjusted its valuation to $10.30/sharc. This amount
represents an increase tor the petitioners of $0.80 per share over the merger consideration. As a result ot the Court’s decision.
we may be required to pay up Lo an additional approximately $7.4 million. in addition to $7.3 million presently maintained in
an escrow account in connection with this litigation. Once the judgment becomes final both partics have the opportunity to
appcal.

On July 19.2016. we entered into a Joinder Agreement to the Receivables Securitization Facility (See Note 10 - Debt) widh
certain new lenders, pursuant to which the new lenders agreed o provide additional loan commitments of $10.0 million. which
increased total available borrowing capacity under the Receivables Sccuritization Facility to $110.0 million. We have drawn
this new commitment of $10.0 million 1o fund loan book growth and for general corporate purposes. As a result. there remains
no excess borrowing capacity under the Receivables Securitization Facility under current commitment levels as of July 19,

2016.

On July 26.2016. an atliliatc o Lone Star Funds subscribed for $21.0 million of ordinary shares in Sterling Mid-Holdings
Limited and lent $9.0 miflion 1o the Company to fund loan growth and for gencral corporate purposcs. The loan is payable on
demand and bears interest at a rate of 3% per annum. and. like other loans made by Lone Star to the Company. ranks cqually in
right of payment with the Company’s other senior indebtedness and cfTectively junior in priority 10 the Company’'s secured
indcbtedness as to the collateral sccuring such secured indcbicdncss.

In August 2016. the Court granted plaintitfs’ motion for class certification in the Arkansas Teachers Retirement System
casc.

On August 19. 2016 (ihe Settlement Date™). the [ssuer settled its private exchange ofter 1o holders of the Company’s 2014
Notes and any interest acerued thercon from June 15, 2016 (" Accrued Interest™) for up to $800.0 million principal amount of'its

36



STERLING MID-HOLDINGS, LTD.
(SUCCESSOR TO DFC GLOBAL CORP)
NOQTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (continucd)

newly issued 10.30%712.00% Scnior Sccured PIK Toggle Notes due 2020 (the 2016 Notes™) plus additional 2016 Notes to be
issucd in respect ol Acerued lnterest (the “Exchange Offer”). An aggregate principal amount of $745.1 miltion (or 93.1% of'the
outstanding principal amount) of the 2014 Notes (the “Tendered Notes™) were validly tendered and accepted for exchange in the
Exchange OfTer. On the Seutlement Date, the [ssucr aceepted all Tendered Notes and delivered an aggregate principal amount of
§$745.1 miltion of 2016 Notes. plus $13.9 million aggregate principal amount of additional 2016 Notes issued in respect of
Accrued Interest. o holders of 2014 Notes who participated in the Exchange Offer. Following the Settlement Date. a total of
$54.9 principal amount of 2014 Notes that was not tendered in the Exchange Offer remains outstanding. Pursuant 10 the
Exchange Agreement, on the Sculement Date. the Company, the 2016 Notes Trustee and the Lone Star afiliate entered into the
Contribution Commitment Leuer, pursuant to which the Lone Star affiliate agrees to contribute to the Company an aggregate
amount of equity capital of up to $73.0 million (subject 1o reduction for any capital contributions made (but not returned) aficr
July 29. 2016 and on or prior to the Seitlement Date, the “Commitment Amount™) from time to time upon the request of the
Company.

On August 19, 2016. the Company entered into a Consent. Limited Waiver and Seventh Amendment o Credit Agreement,
dated as of August 19, 2016 (the "ABL Amendment™), wogether with the Issuer, Sterling Holdings Limited ("1oldings™) and
certain borrowers. lenders and issuing banks party thereto. The ABL Amendment amends the Credit Agreement. dated June 13,
2014 (as amended. supplemented or modified, the “Credit Agreement”™). by and among Holdings, the Company. JefTerics
Finance LLC, as Administrative Agent and Collateral Agent, and the borrowers, lenders and other partics thercto. The ABL
Amendment was entered in connection with the Exchange OtTer (as defined above). Pursuant to the ABL Amendment. the
lenders under the Credit Agreement agreed o waive certain provisions under the definition of “Permiued Refinancing
Indebtedness™ in the Credit Agreement with respect to the cenain supplemental arrangements under the Exchange Ofter, 10 the
extent such provisions may be considered to be violated by any of the supplemental arrangements.

On August 22, 2016 and Scptember 1. 2016 the Company received a capital contribution ot $8.0 million and $25.0 miltion.
respectively, from an affiliate of Lone Star Funds which was used 10 suppost genceral corporate purposes and o fund loan
growth.

On September 20, 2016. certain of the existing lenders under the Securitization Facility made additional loan commitments
o the Borrower in the aggeegate principal amount of’ $20.0 million and, concurrently, made advances o the Borrower in such
aggregate principal amount of $20.0 million, and the Borrower issucd promissory notes in favor of such Lenders reflecting the
amount of their increased loan.

The Company has evaluated subsequent events from the balance sheet date through September 28, 2016. the date the
financial statements were available 1o be issued and determined there were no additional items requiring disclosure.
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